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COMPANY PROFILE
i)y

China Financial Leasing Group Limited (Stock Code: 2312, “CFLG”
or the “Company”, with its subsidiaries, collectively the “Group”) is
an investment company. Incorporated in the Cayman Islands, the
Company’s shares were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in October 2002 under
Chapter 21 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange.

According to the Investor and Financial Education Council in Hong
Kong, definition of Chapter 21 companies is as follows:

“The primary business of Chapter 21 companies is to invest in
listed or unlisted securities, including warrants, money market
instruments, commodities, options and futures contracts as
well as other collective investment schemes. As the investment
performance is closely related to the company’s result and return
to shareholders, they need investment managers with experience,
expertise and integrity.”

CFLG principally engages in the investment of listed and/or
unlisted securities, predominantly focusing in the China and
Hong Kong market region. As we strive to create value for
our shareholders, we adopt prudent investment approach in
selecting potential investment opportunities, and at the same time
leveraging on favorable market conditions to maximize return.
Our investment team consist of well experienced professional
with in depth market knowledge, as well as possessing extensive
product knowledge in various investment products such as
stocks, derivatives products, bonds etc.
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DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT
H 3

Dear Shareholders,

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) is pleased
to present you with the 2022 Annual Report of China Financial
Leasing Group Limited (the “Company”), with its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022.

2022 was arguably one of the most difficult years of investing
for many investors in recent memory as there were practically
no safe haven for majority of the year. Prices in those popular
investment vehicles such as stocks, bonds, commodities, as well
as alternatives like cryptocurrency, all dropped considerably over
the first three quarters of the year. Lingering adverse effect from
Omicron variant, along with US rate hikes and mainland sluggish
economy all contributed to the tough investment environment.
Long position in US dollar really was the only winning formula
throughout while most blue chips in developed markets remained
down for the year.

PRC ECONOMY

Mainland economy endured one of the slowest economic growths
in recent years as COVID-19 lock down measures implemented
before have significantly impacted business operation as well as
tourism flow numbers. Essential supply chains in many industries
came to halt in various occasions and led to reduced output and
trade flows. Consumer spending as expected turned sluggish as
well. China’s gross domestic product grew 3% in 2022, missing
the official target of 5.5%. We also see a weak Renminbi against
US dollar in the year, added to the woe of high gearing mainland
real estate developers.
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DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT
H 3

Debt crisis in mainland property industry was another major event
last year. Despite labelled as too big to fail by the market, many
companies struggled to raise new debts under central bank
policies implemented before to curb down excessive leverage.
As a result, many have difficulty to repay the expiring ones while
their operating cash inflows were also significantly impacted by
the plummeting property sales. Many firms have no choice but
to liquidate assets in Hong Kong and overseas while some try to
restructure their debt but only a handful been able to do so. It is
widely anticipated that many companies in this sector will report
losses in upcoming results.

PROSPECT

As all of us can finally move on from COVID-19 pandemic, 2023
will be the year of full normalization where passengers and trade
flow resume to a large extent, may be toward pre-COVID levels
in best case scenarios. How much of the market rally in recent
months have discounted to such normalization assumption will
greatly dictate market trend and fund flow of this year. Reopening
of mainland border should trigger exponential increase in face-
to-face discussion and should resulted in much more corporate
transactions to the stock market as well as IPO deals in Hong
Kong. Group’s financial position have strengthened further
during the past year and therefore enable us to continue our
prudent approach of selecting suitable investments, as we aim to
explore new and untapped investment opportunities to enhance
shareholder’s return. On behalf of the Board, allow me to express
our sincere appreciation to the shareholders for their continuous
support.

Lui Cheuk Hang Henri
Executive Director
Hong Kong, 24 February 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2022, China Financial
Leasing Group Limited (the “Company”) with its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) was mainly engaged in the activities
of short to medium term capital appreciation by investing in a
diversified portfolio of investments in listed and unlisted securities.

Worldwide financial markets experienced a roller coaster ride in
2022, as during first three quarters of the year, all markets were
battered heavily with tons of adverse news such as Russia-
Ukraine conflict, inflation fear in United States (“US”) that sparked
upward trend in interest rate as well as worries of aggressive
monetary policy by Federal Reserve that may trigger fear of US
economy entering into recession. S&P 500 index dropped an
astounding 24.8% for the first nine months of 2022. On the other
hand, outbreak of Omicron variant in the world continue to affect
economic performances. More so in China where COVID-19
have led to large scale of lockdown in various major cities, while
mainland property market credit crunch crisis escalated further in
the year and led to huge sell off in the mainland property counters
at one point. Hang Seng Index (“HSI”) dropped from level of
23,397 at the end of 2021 to 14,687 at end of October, a 37.2%
decrease at that moment.

Nonetheless, fourth quarter of 2022 turned out to be a completely
opposite of the market trend since beginning of the year.
Economic data released in US began to indicate inflation growth
may have slowed down triggered a massive short covering as
well as bargain hunting activities in big name stocks. Hong Kong
and China markets catch on to the gigantic rally during the last
two months with persisting rumor of China looking to open up its
economy and relax its COVID-19 tightening measures. These set
off a huge market rebound which saw HSI rallying some 5,000
points during November and December as big-name tech stocks
like Tencent rebounded over 50% from year low level. For the
year though, HSI remained down 15.5% to close at 19,781 while
Hang Seng Tech Index dropped 27.2%. The Group recorded
a net fair value losses on listed investments of approximately
HK$16,044,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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OUTLOOK

Market rally continues well into start of 2023 with most market
indices enjoyed further gain in January. Looking ahead, we
believe worldwide markets will continue to experience short and
frequent volatile swings as bull/bear market cycle have shortened
considerably compared to years before. Risk of recession fear in
US Economy cannot be overlooked as there are currently no signs
of rate hike coming to a halt, and of course led the million-dollar
question of a soft or hard landing at the end. After three years,
COVID-19 should finally become a non-event to the investor’s
community. In terms of the Hong Kong and China market, after
the epic rebound over the past few months, we believe related
indices will likely entering into consolidation stage where market
shift their focus to identify individual sectors and stocks that
remain undervalued. As usual, the Group will constantly monitor
the market changes and explore listed and unlisted investment
opportunities in aim to enhance investment return for shareholders
of the Company.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying value of the Group’s listed
equity investments was approximately HK$45,913,000 (2021:
HK$25,764,000) while carrying value of the Group’s unlisted
equity investment was nil (2021: nil).

The Group recorded sales proceeds from disposals of trading
listed equity securities of approximately HK$57,553,000 (2021:
HK$22,457,000) for the year ended 31 December 2022. The
realised losses and unrealised losses on financial assets at FVTPL
for the year ended 31 December 2022 were approximately
HK$10,396,000 (2021: HK$33,334,000) and HK$5,648,000
(2021: HK$12,249,000) respectively. Loss for the year was
approximately HK$20,502,000 (2021: HK$51,597,000) which
was mainly attributable to the operating expenses and equity
investments losses.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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EQUITY INVESTMENTS BRAEKRE

As at 31 December 2022, the Group held financial assets at WN-_TE-_—F+_-_A=+—H K&EHE

FVTPL of approximately HK$45,913,000 Listed below are the # A FZ@BERIZAFEAE UK EE

particulars of the Group’s major listed equity securities: 24 7/545913,0008 L AEBZEE &
MRARZFFBFHINOT -

As at 31 December 2022 For the year ended 31 December 2022
HW-BZZETZAZ+-H BE-B-EfoAST-ALEE
Approximate
percentage
of investment
Approximate attributable to
Number of  percentage of Market value/  the Group's Dividend Dividend Sales Realised  Unrealised Fair value
Name of investees shares  interest held Cost  Market prices fairvalue  netassets received cover proceeds  gain/(loss)  gain/lloss)  gain/(loss)
rEEAEE k3 by & AVE
fifsa wE/  EhZRE Wi/ Wi/ g/
FREMEER RH%E  BHEML A& W 0FE BREAR  WEWZRR Ret® HEREHE (E8) (B8 (B8
000) (HKS000) HKS) (HKS'000) (HKS000) (HKS'000) (HK$000) (HK$000) (HKS'000)
() (F#m) (#7) (T#m) (Tén) (Tén) (Tén) (Tim) (Tén)
() China Garbon Neutral Development Group Limited (1372) 4700 147% 14,972 2480 11,696 17.1% - NA - - (3316) (3316)
(*China Carbon’)
AR NERSE i
ERAF(17)
([EgeR))
(o) Smart City Development Holdings Limited (8268) 9,952 4.15% 8,001 0770 7,663 11.25% - N/A - - (339) (338)
[*Smart City')
ERERERERAA 8269 TR
([&5))
(¢ Siver Tide Holoings Limited (1943) "Sliver Tice") 5000  Lessthan 1% 5410 0.940 4700 6.90% - NA - - (10) (T10)
REERARAT (1043 D% TR
()
{d)  Hong Kong Education (nt") Investments Limited (1082) 2400 Lessthan 1% 3,991 1780 421 6.27% - NA - - 21 281
('Hong Kong Education’)
BE45 (A5 RESE HiM1% I il
BRAA(108)
(FE#45))
(g Hing Ming Holdings Limited (8425) ("Hing Ming”) 16,328 4.34% 18,099 0.245 4,000 587% - N/A - - 1,959) 1,959)
HERRARAR B429) ik
(18))
) Mii International Holdings Limited (1715) 33820 2.25% 5618 0.100 3382 4.96% - NA 13 8 3,756) [3,748)
("MijiInternational")
ARERERERAF (1715 TR
(PRixER))
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As at 31 December 2022 For the year ended 31 December 2022
HW-BZZETZA=+-8 BE-3--E{-A=r-ALSE
Approximate
percentage
of investment
Approximate attributable to
Number of  percentage of Market value/  the Group's Dividend Dividend Sales Realised ~ Unrealised Fair value
Name of investees shares  interest held Cost  Market prices fairvalue et assets received cover proceeds  gain/(loss)  gain/(loss)  gain/(loss)
KREgHE B#E AR O9E
fifsa ) W/ EhRE Wi/ b/ i/
FREATER RH®RE  BHEML A& [ 0FE BREAM  WEWZRR Rat® HEREHE (B8 (B8 (B8
(000) (HK$000) (HK$) (HKS'000 (HKS'000) (HKS'000) (HK$000) (HK$000) (HK$000)
() (F#m) (#7) (Tém) (Tén) (Tén) (Tém) (Tim) (Tém)
() Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limfted (1143) 55,000 4.55% 5,565 0,085 3,025 4.44% - NA - - (2.540) (2.540)
('Link-Asia')
REEREBNAEE i
BRAF (1143) (5 ))
[ Tracker Fund of Hong Kong (2800) (Tracker HK') 100 Lessthani% 2219 19920 1992 292% 65 167.02 1985 (2%) (166) (461)
BEES(80([BEES)) DR 1%
i AIAGroup Limted (1299) ['AIA') 19 Lessthan 1% 1512 86.800 1649 242% Kl 175 854 3 188 219
RARBERERR(1299) Hi1%
(TRBIRER])
{) Tencent Holdings Limited (700) ('Tencent') 4 Lessthan 1% 1,672 334,000 1,3% 196% 7 1778 876 [217) (259) (476)
BABRERAF (700) HR1%
(&)
[} Otherlisted investments NA NA 6,004 NA 2238 3.28% 4 NA 53,69 9,923 6927 2,996)
Aot TR el i
Total NA NA AL N/A 45913 67.38% 150 N/A 57,554 (10,396) (5,648) (16,044)
&3t TER TER TER TER
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The realised and unrealised losses on listed investments
amounted to approximately HK$16,044,000 for the year ended
31 December 2022.

For the listed investments held as at 31 December 2022, the
realised losses and unrealised losses were approximately
HK$390,000 and HK12,812,000 respectively. For those listed
investments held but were sold during the year ended 31
December 2022, the realised losses and unrealised gains were
approximately HK$10,006,000 and HK$7,164,000 respectively.

(a)

China Carbon

China Carbon Neutral Development Group Limited is
principally engaged in global carbon neutral business, civil
engineering and construction business as well as carbon
asset management business. The audited consolidated
profit attributable to owners of China Carbon for the
year ended 31 December 2021 was approximately
HK$267,651,000. As at 31 December 2021, the audited
consolidated net asset value attributable to owners of China
Carbon was HK$86,874,000.

The Investment Committee noted that China Carbon
commenced their global carbon business in early 2021
as various countries in the world like China are vigorously
promoting related policies and they have also ceased loss
making operations such as automotive engine business.
China Carbon will continue to develop their carbon asset
projects for business partners and carry out CCUS project
for its client.

The Investment Committee considered that China Carbon
financial position have strengthen significantly with the
raising of funds and this should be beneficial to them in
expanding Carbon neutral business, as the Company
aims to promote carbon neutral business and eco-friendly
awareness to the whole society all walks of life as well as
to promote the implementation of carbon neutrality and
contribute to the global response to climate change.
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(b)

(c)

Smart City

Smart City is principally engaged in the activities of
construction business, as a main contractor and fitting out
works, as well as the provision of electrical and mechanical
engineering services, mainly in Hong Kong, Mainland China
and Macau, and other construction related businesses.
Their other business include investment in securities,
property investment as well as money lending. The audited
consolidated profit attributable to owners of Smart City
for the year ended 31 March 2022 was approximately
HK$15,336,000. As at 31 March 2022, the audited
consolidated net asset value attributable to owners of Smart
City Development was approximately HK$130,371,000.

The Investment Committee noted that the revenue of Smart
City for its recent interim results decreased mainly because
of the disposal of its Beijing project as well as lesser revenue
recognition of its various almost completed projects, though
the gross profit margin of its core business had improved
over previous corresponding figure.

The Investment Committee believed that with the economic
environment of China and Hong Kong are recovering and
improving in 2023, it is expected that the development of
the Group will remain stable with the resuming economic
condition.

Silver Tide

Silver Tide is principally engaged in providing construction
services, including traditional formwork using timber and
plywood, system formwork using aluminium and steel,
ancillary works such as concrete works and reinforcement
works for the public and private sectors in Hong Kong and
business of securities dealing and broking. The audited
consolidated loss attributable to owners of Silver Tide
for the year ended 31 March 2022 was approximately
HK$33,844,000. As at 31 March 2022, the audited
consolidated net asset value attributable to owners of Silver
Tide was approximately HK$211,142,000.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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(d)

The Investment Committee noticed despite the drop in
revenue for its recent interim results, the company’s gross
profit actually improved due to decrease in material and
consumables costs from fewer usage of construction
materials and consumables, as well as decrease in the
subcontracting charges due to the effectiveness of project
management on certain projects commenced. Trade
receivables figure also improved significantly during interim
results of 2022.

The Investment Committee believe the company’s optimism
toward current HKSAR government vision and determination
to increase land supply in medium to long term that should
provide ample opportunities for the group is valid, as Silver
Tide should be able to select projects prudently and future
profitability will strive on how efficient they can improve their
operating efficiency.

Hong Kong Education

Hong Kong Education is principally engaged in the provision
of private educational services, which include primary
tutoring services, skill course and test preparation courses,
secondary tutoring services and English language training
and test preparation courses. The audited consolidated loss
attributable to owners of Hong Kong Education for the year
ended 30 June 2022 was approximately HK$32,892,000.
As at 30 June 2022, the audited consolidated net asset
value attributable to owners of Hong Kong Education was
approximately HK$145,801,000.

The Investment Committee noticed that the losses were
mainly attributable to one time events such as one off equity
settled share-based transaction, as well as impairment
losses on investment and receivables.

The Investment Committee believed that with the complete
easing of COVID 19 lockdown measures, in person tutoring
businesses in Hong Kong should enjoy a substantial
rebound over the past few years level and should be
beneficial to Hong Kong Education. Their acquisition of
new business segment of virtual reality business should
complement their core operation as well with younger
generation more adapt to the online VR scope of tutoring
and related entertainment.
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(e)

U]

Hing Ming

Hing Ming is principally engaged in providing rental services
of temporary suspended working platforms and other
equipment such as tower cranes and generators and trading
of equipment and spare parts. The audited consolidated
loss attributable to owners of Hing Ming for the year ended
31 March 2022 was approximately HK$3,035,000. As at
31 March 2022, the audited consolidated net asset value
attributable to owners of Hing Ming was approximately
HK$121,354,000.

The Investment Committee noticed that from its recent
interim results, both Hing Ming revenue and profit improved
due to increase in income generated from tower crane rental
and related services.

The Investment Committee also noted that Hing Ming
action utilizing its scheme to buy back 6% of its share
capital may be an encouraging sign by their management
to demonstrate to the investment community of their view
of the depressed share price. With local government aim
to boost the land bank continuously, demand for working
platforms and tower cranes should remain strong in the
years to come.

Miji International

Miji International is principally engaged in developing,
manufacturing and selling premium kitchen appliances in the
PRC. The audited consolidated loss attributable to owners
of Miji International for the year ended 31 December 2021
was approximately Renminbi (‘RMB”) 44,353,000. As at 31
December 2021, the audited consolidated net asset value
attributable to owners of Miji International was approximately
RMB124,268,000.

The Investment Committee noted that Miji International
businesses continue to suffer during first half of 2022 due
to new waves of COVID-19 in China, in which various
lockdown measures implemented affected their core
businesses to a large extent and let to continuous losses in
first half.
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(9)

(h)

The Investment Committee hoped that with China entering
into a completely new phase in 2023 where most if not
all lockdown measures are lifted, Miji International will see
its business growth gradually picking up and return to
profitability at some point.

Link-Asia

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited is a value-
added service provider and electronics manufacturer
focused on the “Belt and Road” cross-border supply chain,
particularly integrates upstream and downstream resources
around the value-added services of the targeted industry
supply chain, and selects key countries and cities along the
Belt and Road route with high economic growth and high
market development for strategic planning. The audited
consolidated loss attributable to owners of Link-Asia for
the year ended 31 December 2021 was approximately
HK$46,397,000. As at 31 December 2021, the audited
consolidated net asset value attributable to owners of Link
Asia was approximately HK$365,877,000.

The Investment Committee noted that Link-Asia’s operation
continue to suffer in first half of 2022 because of lingering
adverse effect from COVID-19 and drove their revenue and
gross profit downward.

The Investment Committee believed that the China’s
liberalization of fertility policies to encourage people to
have three children is positive to Link-Asia in the long run
as demand toward high-end medical and health service
business should enjoy gradual and steady growth in the
coming years, as they have embraced a dual approach to
drive faster and steadier revenue growth.

Tracker HK

Tracker HK is an exchange-traded fund designed to
provide investment results that closely correspond to the
performance of HSI.
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(i)

The Investment Committee noted that after a sustaining
downtrend of Hong Kong market that continued for first ten
months of 2022, HSI finally enjoyed a substantial rebound
from the low level at end of October and the Group’s losses
in this counter have been greatly reduced from the market
rebound. As stated before, Tracker HK remain as the most
cost-efficient vehicle for the Company to gain exposure in
the Hong Kong blue chip sector.

The Investment Committee is of the opinion that Hong
Kong market should enjoy further gradual rally in 2023 and
therefore will continue to monitor our holdings in Tracker HK
closely and make suitable investment decision based on the
market trend.

AlA

AlA is the largest independent publicly listed pan-Asian life
insurance group with a presence in 18 markets across Asia,
including the mainland of China, Hong Kong, Singapore,
Thailand etc, serving the holders of over 40 million individual
policies and 17 million members of Group insurance
schemes. The audited consolidated profit attributable to
owners of AIA for the year ended 31 December 2021 was
approximately US Dollars (“US$”) 7,427 million. As at 31
December 2021, the audited consolidated net asset value
attributable to owners of AlA was approximately US$60,467
million.

The Investment Committee noted that despite of the adverse
impact from COVID-19, AlA delivered resilient performance
in the first half of 2022 and management decision to raise its
interim dividend by 6% clearly reflects their relatively bullish
view in the long run. Company’s steady action to buy back
its shares also is a good sign to the investors in general.
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)

The investment Committee considered that AlA is one of
the best performing blue chips during the recent market
rally and continue well into 2023. As a result, baring sudden
macro market changes or major events, we consider AlA
as one of our core holdings and will retain certain holdings
while some portion may be used as short term trading or
hedging through derivative means.

Tencent

Tencent is a world-leading internet and technology company
that develops innovative products and services to improve
the quality of life of people around the world. Tencent
also publishes some of the world’s most popular video
games and other high-quality digital content, enriching
interactive entertainment experiences for people around
the globe. Tencent also offers a range of services such as
cloud computing, advertising, financial technology, and
other enterprise services. The audited consolidated profit
attributable to owners of Tencent for the year ended 31
December 2021 was approximately RMB224,822 million. As
at 31 December 2021, the audited consolidated net asset
value attributable to owners of Tencent was approximately
RMB806,299 million.

The Investment Committee noted that Tencent had adapted
to the heavier regulatory environment very well and worst
should be over. Tencent decision to declare Meituan as
special dividend is also a good move for the company to
unlock the hidden investment value that should be reflected
in the share price performances.

The Investment Committee considered similar to AlA,
Tencent remains as a market leader and indicator in the
blue chip sector and share price performance since end
of October 2022 certainly prove such fact. Therefore, we
intend to hold certain portion of Tencent as long term
investment while allocating some small percentage for short
term trading in trying to take advantage of price fluctuation
to enhance our return.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
FUNDING

As at 31 December 2022, the Group maintained cash and
cash equivalents of approximately HK$22,933,000 (2021:
HK$21,125,000) which were mainly denominated in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"). The Group will monitor the exposure and take
prudent measures when necessary.

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the Group
had no interest-bearing liabilities, and therefore the Group did not
present the gearing ratio which represents the ratio of the Group’s
total interest-bearing liabilities to the total equity of the Group.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had net assets of
approximately HK$68,137,000 (2021: HK$46,522,000), the
Group had no borrowings or long-term liabilities except for the
lease liabilities.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s total issued shares
was 173,448,741 of HK$0.04 each (2021: 231,264,988 of
HK$0.2 each). The Group had no debt securities or other capital
instruments as at 31 December 2021.

(@ On 28 April 2021, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with Orient Securities Limited (“Orient”) as placing
agent where Orient agreed to place on a best effort basis
a maximum of 385,000,000 new shares of the Company
(“Placing Share”) of HK$0.02 each at HK$0.047 per
Placing Share to at least six placees who were professional
investors according to the definition of the SFO (collectively
“Placing”). The intended and actual use of proceeds from
the share placement was for general working capital of
the Company and potential investments to be identified.
The placing transaction was completed on 14 May 2021
and a total of 385,000,000 shares were issued. The gross
and net proceeds were approximately HK$18,100,000
and HK$17,600,000 respectively. The net price was
approximately HK$0.046 per Placing Share.
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On 12 July 2021, the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of the Company announced to propose that
every ten (10) issued and unissued shares of par value
of HK$0.02 each in the share capital of the Company be
consolidated into one (1) consolidated share of par value of
HK$0.20 each. On 12 July 2021, there were 2,312,649,882
existing shares in issue which were fully paid or credited as
fully paid, upon the share consolidation becoming effective,
there will be 231,264,988 consolidated shares in issue which
are fully paid or credited as fully paid. On 12 July 2021,
the existing shares were traded on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in board lots of
20,000 existing shares. It was proposed that, subject to the
share consolidation becoming effective, the board lot size
for trading on the Stock Exchange be changed from 20,000
existing shares to 10,000 consolidated shares.

On 20 August 2021, the Board announced that the
proposed ordinary resolution was duly passed by the
shareholders of the Company by way of poll at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on
20 August 2021 to consider the ordinary resolution to be
proposed to approve the share consolidation. The Board
announced that all the conditions precedent to the share
consolidation have been fulfilled and the share consolidation
became effective on 24 August 2021.

On 27 January 2022, The Company proposed capital
reduction on issued shares (“Capital Reduction”), share
premium reduction (“Share Premium Reduction”) and
subs-division of unissued shares (“Sub-division”), with the
following details:

()  the Capital Reduction involving the reduction of the
par value of each issued share from HK$0.20 to
HK$0.01 by cancelling the paid-up share capital to the
extent of HK$0.19 per issued share so that following
such reduction, each issued share with a par value
of HK$0.01 in the share capital of the Company shall
become one new share; and
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(i) the Share Premium Reduction involving the reduction
of the amount standing to the credit of the Share
Premium Account. The credit arising from the Capital
Reduction and the Share Premium Reduction will be
applied towards offsetting the Accumulated Losses as
at the effective date of the Capital Reduction, thereby
reducing the Accumulated Losses. The balance of
the credit (if any) of the Share Premium Account after
offsetting the Accumulated Losses may be applied
by the Company in any manner as permitted by all
applicable laws and the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company.

An extraordinary general meeting has been held on 15
March 2022 and the above resolutions have been duly
passed. A petition has been made for the Capital Reduction
to the Grand Court of the Cayman Islands (“Court”), and the
hearing of the Company’s petition for the Capital Reduction
was held on 15 July 2022 before the Court and the Court
made an order confirming the Capital Reduction. All the
other conditions precedent for the implementation of the
Capital Reduction, the Share Premium Reduction and the
Sub-division have been fulfilled. The Capital Reduction, the
Share Premium Reduction and the Sub-division became
effective on 25 July 2022.

On 28 July 2022, the Company put forward a proposal to
the shareholders to effect the share consolidation which
involves the consolidation of every four issued and unissued
Existing Shares of HK$0.01 each into one consolidated
share (“Consolidated Share(s)”) of HK$0.04 each (“Share
Consolidation”). And the Company further proposes, subject
to, amongst others, the Share Consolidation becoming
effective, to implement the rights issue on the basis of
two shares (“Right Share(s)”) for every one consolidated
share held on the record date for the determination of the
entitlements under the Rights Issue (“Record Date”) at the
subscription price of HK$0.38 per Rights Share (“Rights
Issue”), to raise gross proceeds of approximately HK$43.9
million before expenses (assuming no further issue or
repurchase of Shares on or before the Record Date), by way
of the Rights Issue of 115,632,494 Rights Shares to the
qualifying shareholders.
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On 19 September 2022, the Board announced that
the proposed ordinary resolution was duly passed by
the shareholders of the Company by way of poll at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on
19 September 2022 to consider the ordinary resolution
to be proposed to approve the Share Consolidation and
Rights Issue. The Board announced that all the conditions
precedent to the Share Consolidation have been fulfilled and
the share consolidation became effective on 21 September
2022 and the Company issued 115,632,494 Consolidated
Shares on 27 October 2022. For details of the Rights
Issue, please make reference to the announcement of the
Company dated 26 October 2022 and the Rights Issue
prospectus issued and published by the Company on 3
October 2022.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM RIGHTS ISSUE
The gross proceeds raised from the Rights Issue are
approximately HK$43.9 million and the net proceeds from the
Rights Issue after expenses are approximately HK$42.1 million.
The Company applies HK$26.9 million, being the approximately
63.9% of the net proceeds, for investment in listed securities
and unlisted securities, and approximately HK$1.0 million, being
approximately 2.4% of the net proceeds, for general working
capital of the Company, such as administrative and other
expenses, including but not limited to office rent, salaries and
allowances and legal and professional fees.
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The remaining net proceeds from the Rights Issue after expenses
are approximately HK$14.2 million, being approximately 33.7% of
the net proceeds. The Company intends to apply HK$10.1 million,
being approximately 23.9% of the net proceeds, for investment in
listed securities and unlisted securities, and approximately HK$4.1
million, being approximately 9.8% of the net proceeds, for general
working capital of the Company before 30 June 2023.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Realised gains and unrealised gains on financial assets at
FVTPL

The realised gains and unrealised gains on financial assets at
FVTPL from changes in fair value on financial assets at FVTPL
held as at 31 December 2022 to the date of approval of this
annual report were amounted to approximately HK$3,218,000
and HK$345,000 respectively.

Except for above mentioned, there were no material events
occurred after the financial report date.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

Save for the acquisition dated 25 March 2022 and disposal of the
subsidiaries dated 1 April 2022 entered into by the Group with two
different independent third parties, in relation to the acquisition of
the entire issued share capital of Income Sky Limited and disposal
of the entire issued share capital of China Finance Qianhai Limited
respectively, the Group did not have any significant merger,
acquisition or disposal during the year ended 31 December 2022.
Details of the acquisition and disposal of the subsidiaries are set
out in note 18 and 26(a).
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EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 2 employees. Total
employee benefits expenses (excluding Directors’ emoluments)
and Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31 December
2022 were approximately HK$838,000 (2021: HK$1,273,000)
and HK$963,000 (2021: HK$1,454,000) respectively. For the
year ended 31 December 2022, COVID-19 related government
grants amounted to approximately HK$48,000 have been offset
to the employee benefits expense. The remuneration policy of
the Group is reviewed annually and employees are remunerated
based on their performance, experience and the prevailing market
practice. No Director or executive is involved in dealing with his
own remuneration.

In addition to salary payments, the Group has participated in
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in
Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in funds under the control
of an independent trustee. Pursuant to the rules of the MPF
Scheme, the Group and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the MPF Scheme at 5% of each employee’s
monthly relevant income subject to a monthly maximum amount
of HK$1,500.

CHARGES ON GROUP’S ASSETS
As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, there were no
charges on the Group’s assets.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and the risk of non-compliance with
such requirements may affect the substantiality of the business.
The Group has allocated various resources to ensure ongoing
compliance with rules and regulations.

During the year under review, the Group has in material
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group is principally engaged in short to medium term capital
appreciation by investing in a diversified portfolio of investments in
listed and unlisted securities, which are exposed to certain market
risks including price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest
rate risk. The details are set out in note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements under the section headed “Financial Risk
Management”.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the year, the investments of the Group were mainly
denominated in HK$. Therefore, there was no material foreign
exchange exposure to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the year, there were no contingent liabilities noted by the
Directors (2021: Nil).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS
As at 31 December 2022, the significant investments of the Group
are included in the Management Discussion and Analysis under
the section headed “Equity Investments”.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy, pursuant to which
allowing shareholders to participate in the Company’s profits whilst
to retain adequate reserves for future growth. The declaration
and payment of dividends by the Company is also subject to any
restrictions under the Laws of the Cayman Islands, the articles of
association of the Company and any applicable laws, rules and
regulations.

The Board of the Company may from time to time determine and
pay to the shareholders such interim dividends as it considers
appropriate. The Board may recommend the payment of final
dividends which are required to be approved by shareholders in
general meetings.

In determining/recommending the frequency, amount and form of
any dividend in any financial year/period, the Board shall consider
the following factors:
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(i)  the actual and expected financial results of the Group;

(i) economic conditions and other internal or external factors
that may have an impact on the business or financial
performance and position of the Group;

(i)  the Group’s business strategies, including future cash
commitments and investment needs to sustain the long-
term growth aspect of the business;

(iv)  the current and future operations, liquidity position and
capital requirements of the Group; and

(v)  any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 December 2022.
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China Financial Leasing Group Limited (the “Company”), with its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) is committed to maintaining
good corporate governance standards and procedures to ensure
the integrity, transparency and quality of disclosure, thereby
enhancing shareholder value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has adopted the code provisions of The Corporate
Governance Code And Corporate Governance Report (the “CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) as its own code of
corporate governance practices.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company was
in compliance with the code provisions set out in the CG Code
except for the deviation from code provision C.2.1.

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. The office of the chairman
of the Board is currently vacant as explain under the section
“CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR”.

Save as aforesaid and in the opinion of the directors (the
“Directors”) of the Company, the Company was in compliance
with the code provisions set out in the CG Code.
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CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY

The Group is an investment company listed on the Stock
Exchange under Chapter 21 of the Listing Rule. By recognising
the importance of stakeholders at the Board level and throughout
the Group, we strive to create values to the stakeholders through
sustainable growth and continuous development.

The Board of the Company has set out the following values to
provide guidance on employees’ conduct and behaviours as
well as the business activities, and to ensure they are embedded
throughout the Company’s vision, mission, policies and business
strategies:

(i)  Integrity — we strive to do what is right;
(i) Excellence — we aim to deliver excellence;

(i) Collaboration — we are always better together;

(iv)  Empathy — we care about our stakeholders — employees,
supply chain and the community; and

(v)  Sustainability — we are committed to a sustainable future.

The Group will continuously review and adjust, if necessary,
its business strategies and keep track of the changing market
conditions to ensure prompt and proactive measures will be taken
to respond to the changes and meet the market needs to foster
the sustainability of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the required standards of dealings
regarding securities transactions by Directors as set out in the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules.

All the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standards as set out in the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 2022,
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board (the “Board”) of Directors is responsible for the
leadership and control of the Company and oversees the Group’s
businesses, investment and strategic decisions and performance.
The Board delegated authority and responsibility for day-to-day
portfolio management of the Group to the investment manager,
while reserving certain key matters for the approval by the Board.
In addition, the Board has also delegated various responsibilities
to the Board committees.

Further details of these committees are set out in this report. As at
the date of this annual report, the Board consists of four Directors
including one executive Director and three independent non-
executive Directors:

Executive Director
Mr. Lui Cheuk Hang Henri

Independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs”)
Mr. Lam Wai Tsin

Mr. Hui Yat On

Mr. Chan Pak Lam, Tom

All Directors are not appointed for a specific term, but they are
subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other. Such balanced
Board composition is formed to ensure strong independence
exists across the Board and has met the recommended practice
under the CG Code for the Board to have at least one-third of its
members comprising independent non-executive Directors. The
biographical information of the Directors are set out under the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors” on pages 55 to
58 of this annual report.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Group in respect of relevant actions against the Directors and
officers.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
Annual Report 2022

Exg

Exg (252 AEAEREREAR
Al AREBAKEZER - RE MR
REMKSE -WEKERESTIRTHE
WRETBEAREZAEREHEATE
BT HMETERSHARFESS
HOERRSN o LS BEFE G ERATAE
TTEFEZEE -

BHEZERE@ZHFE  CIHRNAR
TR RAFHREY EFSHNEES
MK BRE-RATEER=RBIF
WITES -

HITEF
AEEEE

BUIRTEE ([BUFRTEE))
MR
B
cLElr

EPREFZZENEBREEH  ERSE
HARB AR RE SR

BEEeRNEFRUH ETETE ¥ X
R EMBER HBEBR EFgr8
EMBTENERESSEERAANZE
I WERFELEEATARREE
EeRBPRLE=ZSZ—KEAEBL
INITEZCEBRRH - EZ2ERSE
RAFRESSESSENZ [EEREF
151 —& o

ARARERHHEERAKRESREE
MBEBERTHRBEENESELSR
BB B TR



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

1 5 4 10 WOE

CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

The office of the chairman of the Board is currently vacant that
the roles and duties of which are assumed by the Board. The
executive Director is responsible for day-to-day management of
business. Therefore, a clear division of responsibilities is in place
and a balance of power and authority is ensured.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The three independent non-executive Directors are persons
of high caliber, with academic and professional qualifications,
and extensive experience in several fields including accounting,
financial, management, etc. With their extensive experience, they
provide strong support towards the effective discharge of the
duties and responsibilities of the Board.

All independent non-executive Directors have given their annual
confirmation of independence to the Company, and the Company
considered that they are independent under Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

All independent non-executive Directors are not appointed for
a specific term, but they are subject to retirement by rotation
in accordance with the Articles. None of the independent non-
executive Directors has served more than nine years during the
year ended 31 December 2022.

BOARD INDEPENDENCE

The Group has established mechanisms to ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board and such mechanisms
will be reviewed annually by the Board. On 6 December 2022, the
Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
following mechanisms at the Board meeting:

(@  Three out of the four Directors are INEDs, which exceeds
the requirement of the Listing Rules that at least one-third of
the Board are independent non-executive Directors.
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(b)  Apart from complying with the requirements prescribed

by the Listing Rules as to the composition of certain
Board committees, INEDs will be appointed to all Board
committees as far as possible to ensure independent views
are available.

The Nomination Committee will assess the independence
of a candidate who is nominated to be a new INED before
appointment and the continued independence of the current
long-serving INEDs on an annual basis.

Each INED is also required to inform the Company as soon
as practicable if there is any change in his/her own personal
particulars that may materially affect his/her independence.

All INEDs are required to submit a written confirmation to
the Company annually to confirm the independence of each
of them and their immediate family members, and their
compliance with the requirements as set out in the Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules.

All Directors are entitled to seek further information and
documentation from the management on the matters to be
discussed at board meetings. They can also seek assistance
from the Company’s company secretary (the “Company
Secretary”) and, where necessary, independent advice from
external professional advisers at the Company’s expense.

All Directors are encouraged to express their views in
an open and candid manner during the Board/Board
Committees meetings.

A Director (including INED) who has material interest in any
contract, transaction or arrangement shall abstain from
voting and not be counted in the quorum on any Board
resolution approving the same.

No equity-based remuneration with performance-related
elements will be granted to INEDs.
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BOARD MEETINGS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board has held
13 meetings. All Directors are given an opportunity to include
any matters in the agenda for all Board meetings and are given
sufficient time to review documents and information relating to
matters to be discussed during the Board meetings in advance.
For all regular Board meetings, the Board reviewed the operation
and financial performance, and reviewed and approved the annual
and interim results. And in order to ensure all Directors could plan
in advance their availability, a notice of at least 14 days is given for
regular meeting. Details of the attendance of each director is listed
under the section “MEETINGS” in this Corporate Governance
Report.

Board minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open
for inspection by the Directors. Every Board member is entitled
to have access to Board papers and related materials and has
unrestricted access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary, and has the right to seek external professional advice if
SO required.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed Director would receive an induction
covering the Group’s business operations, policies and procedures
and the statutory and regulatory obligations of a director of a
listed company. The Group also provides briefings and other
training to develop and refresh the Directors’ knowledge and
skills. The Company continuously updates Directors on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices. Circulars or
guidance notes are issued to Directors and senior management
where appropriate, to ensure awareness of best corporate
governance practices.
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According to the records provided by the Directors, during the
period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022, the Directors
participated in the following trainings:

Name of Directors

BEERREGE L RS- —F—
A—Hz2-_Z-_—_4+_-_A=+—8H
M EEEL2ETHE

Type of Trainings

BEEpns EIER
Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Lui Cheuk Hang Henri = RELE B
Mr. Chiu Wai Lap' B FAE N/A T A
Independent Non-executive Director BUHNTEF

Mr. Lam Wai Tsin MRS B
Mr. Hui Yat On AL B
Mr. Chan Pak Lam, Tom? PR AR 4R 45 AE 2 B
Mr. Luk Chi Shing® B 7S BK S A N/A 3 A
A: attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums relating to directors’ A: HEBBEERE TSk SeH L

duties Hamig
B:  reading newspaper, journals and updates relating to the economy general B : RIEABEKH  —REKNEFHRIEZ R

business or directors’ duties etc.

—_

Mr. Chiu Wai Lap resigned on 7 January 2022.
2. Mr. Chan Pak Lam, Tom was appointed on 30 June 2022.
3. Mr. Luk Chi Shing resigned on 30 June 2022.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has established the following committees to assist
the Company in the implementation of its functions:

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 7 October 2002. The
Audit Committee currently consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Hui Yat On (chairman of the Audit
Committee), Mr. Lam Wai Tsin and Mr. Chan Pak Lam, Tom.

The terms of reference adopted by the Audit Committee are
aligned with the code provisions set out in the CG Code. The
terms of reference setting out the Audit Committee’s authority,
duties and responsibilities are available on the respective websites
of the HKEX and the Company.
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The Audit Committee shall meet the external auditor to discuss
any area of concern during the audit or review. The Audit
Committee reviews the interim and annual reports before
submission to the Board. The Audit Committee focuses not only
on the impact of standards, but also on the Listing Rules and the
legal requirements in the review of the Group’s interim and annual
reports.

During the year, the Audit Committee held 3 meetings and has
reviewed the Group’s unaudited interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2022 and audited annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2021 together with the auditor of the Group.
Details of the attendance of each director is listed under the
section “MEETINGS” in this Corporate Governance Report. In the
opinion of the Audit Committee, the preparation of such results
complied with the applicable accounting standards and the Listing
Rules.

Major work completed by the Audit Committee during the year
includes:

— reviewed the Group’s annual report, interim financial
information and annual financial statements;

— reviewed significant accounting and audit issues;

— reviewed the external auditor’s qualifications, independence
and performance;

— assisted the Board to evaluate on the effectiveness of
financial reporting procedures and internal control system;

— advised on material event or drawing the attention of the
management on related risks; and

— reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s
systems of risk management, internal control and related
policies.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 21 December
2011 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing
Rules, and currently consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Lam Wai Tsin (chairman of the Nomination
Committee), Mr. Hui Yat On and Mr. Chan Pak Lam, Tom.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, identifying
qualified individuals to become members of the Board, assessing
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors
and making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors. Moreover, the committee will
ensure that the Board has the appropriate balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives necessary to enhance
the effectiveness of the Board and to maintain high standards of
corporate governance.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held 2 meetings.
Details of the attendance of each director is listed under the
section “MEETINGS” in this Corporate Governance Report.

The terms of reference setting out the Nomination Committee’s
authority, duties and responsibilities are available on the respective
websites of the HKEX and the Company.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 28
June 2005 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Listing Rules, and currently consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Pak Lam, Tom (chairman
of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Hui Yat On and Mr. Lam
Wai Tsin. The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible
for the determination of the specific remuneration packages
of all Directors and senior management (including benefits in
kind, pension rights and compensation payments), making
recommendations to the Board on the matters relating to the
Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of the
Directors and senior management, and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration.
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During the year, the Remuneration Committee held 3 meetings
to discuss remuneration-related matters, review of remuneration
packages of executive director and INEDs. No Directors was
involved in deciding his/her own remuneration at the meeting of
the Remuneration Committee. Details of the attendance of each
director is listed under the section “MEETINGS” in this Corporate
Governance Report.

The terms of reference setting out the Remuneration Committee’s
authority, duties and responsibilities are available on the respective
websites of the HKEX and the Company.

DIVERSITY OF THE BOARD AND WORKFORCE

The Company has adopted a Board diversity policy to achieve
Board diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age (eighteen years old
or above), cultural and educational background, qualification,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. The
Company value gender diversity, and the Board targets to appoint
at least a director of a different gender no later than 31 December
2024 and the Board will consider amending the Board diversity
policy to include appointment of at least a director of a different
gender so that the potential successors to the board can achieve
gender diversity.

The Nomination Committee monitors the implementation of
the Board diversity policy to ensure the effectiveness of the
Board diversity policy. On 6 December 2022, the Nomination
Committee reviewed the Nomination Policy and the Board
Diversity Policy, and considered that the said policies were
appropriate and effective. Further, it reviewed biographies of the
Directors, assessed the continued independence of each INED
and recommended Mr. Lui Cheuk Hang Henri, Mr. Lam Wai Tsin
and Mr. Chan Pak Lam, Tom (“Retiring Directors”) to the Board
for considering their re-election at the forthcoming AGM based on
the Articles of Association of the Company, Nomination Policy and
the Board Diversity Policy.
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The Nomination Committee believed that the Retiring Directors
will continue to contribute to the Board with their skills, experience
and knowledge. It also noted that none of the INED of the
Company is a long serving INED.

The Board places emphasis on diversity (including gender
diversity) across all levels of the Group. The employee gender
ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2022 is 50:50. The Group
when hiring employees considers a number of factors, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and education background,
qualification, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service, and the Group will make sure achieving
gender diversity across the workforce.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditor and to approve
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditor, and any questions of resignation or dismissal of such
auditor; reviewing the interim and annual reports and accounts of
the Group; and overseeing the Group’s financial reporting system
and internal control procedures. During the year under review, the
remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s auditor, RSM Hong
Kong, is set out below:
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SN TARRRZBENER XSS
B2 BE#sIm T

Fee paid/payable

e ENER
Audit services RS 0/355
Non-audit services IERZ BT 150/150

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company
Secretary has duly complied with the relevant professional training
requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of
shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll except
where the chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a resolution
which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to be
voted on by a show of hands.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company commits to place shareholders’ interests as
top priority and protect their rights as provided in the Articles.
Shareholders can visit the Company’s website (www.cflg.com.hk)
to gain access to the Company’s up-to-date information. They are
entitled to be given due notice to attend all the general meetings
of the Company, vote all the resolutions (except for those which
shareholders may have conflict of interest and are required to
abstain from voting) and raise questions to the management on
the Group’s status and development plans.

Shareholders as duly registered holders of the ordinary shares
of the Company (“Members”) are also entitled to requisition to
convene an extraordinary general meeting in accordance with
the Articles. Details of the requirements and procedures are as
follows:

()  Any one or more Members holding not less than one tenth
of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company may send a
written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary to
convene a general meeting;

(i) The requisition must be duly signed by the requisitionist,
specifying the requisitionist’s name, contact details and
the number of ordinary shares of the Company that the
requisitionist is holding and the matters proposed to be
discussed and transacted in the general meeting. The
requisition must be deposited at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong at 11/F., Wui Tat Centre, 55
Connaught Road West, Hong Kong;

(iy ~ The Company will verify the requisition and upon confirming
that the requisition is proper and in order, the Board will
proceed with the necessary procedures including the
convening of a general meeting; and

(ivy  The general meeting shall be held within two (2) months
after the deposit of the requisition.
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If the Board does not within twenty-one (21) days from the date of
the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a general
meeting, the requisitionist himself may convene a general meeting
in the same manner.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular
communication and reasonable disclosure of information to its
shareholders so that they can exercise their rights in an informed
manner. Information about the Company is disseminated to the
shareholders through:

(i)  delivery of interim and annual results and reports to all
shareholders;

(i) publication of announcements on interim and annual results
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange,
and issuance of other announcements and shareholders’
circulars in accordance with the continuing disclosure
obligations under the Listing Rules; and

(i) the general meeting of the Company is an effective
communication channel between the Board and
shareholders. As such, the Board members attended
the 2022 annual general meeting and other extraordinary
general meetings during the year to provide shareholders
with opportunities to understand the latest development of
the Group and raise questions.

The 2022 annual general meeting was held on 27 May 2022
and there were two extraordinary general meetings held on
15 March 2022 and 19 September 2022 respectively. Details
of the attendance of each director is listed under the section
“MEETINGS?” in this Corporate Governance Report.

Except for the changes disclosed in the section headed “Capital
Structure” of the Management Discussion and Analysis which has
affected the par value of the share capital of the Company and
thus the relevant section of the Articles, there were no significant
changes in the Company’s constitutional documents during the
year.
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MEETINGS

The Board meets on a regular and on an ad hoc basis, as required
by business needs. The attendance of each Director at the Board
meetings, committee meetings and general meetings during the
year ended 31 December 2022 is set out in the following table:

28

EEe TN EEBE IRETE
EOBESENEBE_ZT__FT=A
—t+—HILEFELHFEESESE £ 8
FEREMMRRRENBEAINTE

Audit Remuneration  Nomination
Board  Committee committee committee General
meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting
B 40 RE
EZ88E ZEGS3E ZRE983 ZEEgE U
Name of Directors Attendance/Number of meetings
BENE HERY, &ERH
Executive Directors HITEZE
Mr. Lui Cheuk Hang Henri nREEE 1313 NATER  NATER  NATER 3/3
Mr. Chiu Wai Lap’ MEILE 01 NATEA NATER  NATER  NATEA
Independent Non-executive Director B/ FEHTEE
Mr. Lam Wai Tsin WHERTE 13/13 3/3 33 2/2 3/3
Mr. Hui Yat On AR 13/13 3/3 3/3 2/2 3/3
Mr. Chan Pak Lam, Tom? BRAAAE 7 4 2 6/6 2/2 11 1/ 1
Mr. Luk Chi Shing® FERSRKSEA° 6/7 1/1 1/2 0/1 2/2

1. Mr. Chiu Wai Lap resigned on 7 January 2022.
2. Mr. Chan Pak Lam, Tom was appointed on 30 June 2022.
3. Mr. Luk Chi Shing resigned on 30 June 2022.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Group’s
accounts for each financial period and to ensure that the financial
statements are in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Board also ensures the
timely publication of the consolidated financial statements. The
Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, confirm that they
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board as a whole is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties including:

(i)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

(i)  to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(i) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
in compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(v) to review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems and
reviewing their effectiveness at least annually.

As a part of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems, appropriate policies and controls have been designed
and established by the Group to ensure that assets are
safeguarded against improper use or disposal, relevant rules and
regulations are adhered to and complied with, reliable financial and
accounting records are maintained in accordance with relevant
accounting standards and regulatory reporting requirements,
and key risks that may impact on the Group’s performance are
appropriately identified and managed.
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The Board had performed annual review on the effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems,
including but not limited to the Group’s ability to cope with its
business transformation and changing external environment; the
scope and quality of management’s review on risk management
and internal control systems; result of internal audit work; the
extent and frequency of communication with the Board in relation
to result of risk and internal control review; significant failures or
weaknesses identified and their related implications; and status
of compliance with the Listing Rules. The Board considers the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems in place
for the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this
Annual Report are effective and adequate.

However, the risk management and internal control systems can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss, as they are designed to manage,
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives.

The Group has adopted a three-tier risk management approach
to identify, evaluate and manage significant risks. The operating
units of the Group, as a first line of defence, identify, evaluate,
mitigate and monitor the risks, and report such risk management
activities to the Group’s management on a regularly basis. The
Group’s management, as the second line of defence, provides
support to the operating units and ensure that the significant risks
are properly managed and within the acceptable range and report
the situation to the Board at each regularly scheduled meeting.
The Board, as the final line of defence, conducts an annual review
of the overall effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems.
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The Group does not have an internal audit function and is
currently of the view that there is no immediate need to set up
an internal audit function within the Group in light of the size,
nature and complexity of the Group’s business. It was decided
that the Board would be directly responsible for internal control
of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. Procedures have
been designed for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use
or disposition, ensuring the maintenance of proper accounting
records for the provision of reliable financial information for internal
use or for publication, and ensuring compliance with applicable
laws, rules and regulations. The situation will be reviewed from
time to time.

During the year, the Board has reviewed and discussed the risk
management and internal control systems and no material internal
control failings, weaknesses or deficiencies have been identified
during the course of the review.

Based on the above, the Board were not aware of any areas
of concern that would have a material impact on the Group’s
financial position or results of operations and considered the
risk management and internal control systems to be generally
effective and adequate including the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programs and budget of
the accounting, internal control and financial reporting functions.

With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of inside
information, the Group has formulated its guidelines, with an aim
to ensure that the insiders abide by the confidentiality requirement
and fulfill the disclosure obligation of the inside information.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

In compliance with code provision D.2.6 of the CG Code, the
Board adopted a Whistleblowing Policy on 6 December 2022. It
provides employees and the relevant third parties who deal with
the Group (e.g. customers, suppliers, creditors and debtors) with
guidance and reporting channels on reporting any suspected
improprieties in any matters related to the Group directly
addressed to the designated person.
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An email account (internalaudit@cflg.com.hk) has been set
up for this purpose. All reported matters will be investigated
independently and, in the meantime, all information received from
a whistleblower and its identity will be kept confidential.

The Board and the Audit Committee will regularly review the
Whistleblowing Policy and mechanism to improve its effectiveness.

ANTI-FRAUD AND ANTI-CORRUPTION
POLICY

In compliance with the new code provision D.2.7 of the CG Code,
the Board adopted an Anti-Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy
on 6 December 2022. It outlines guidelines and the minimum
standards of conducts, all applicable laws and regulations in
relation to the anti-corruption and anti-bribery, the responsibilities
of employees to resist fraud, to help the Group defend against
corrupt practices and to report any reasonably suspected case of
fraud and corruption or any attempts thereof, to the management
or through an appropriate reporting channel. The Group would
not tolerate all forms of fraud and corruption among all employees
and those acting in an agency or fiduciary capacity on behalf of
the Group, and in its business dealing with third parties.

The Board and the Audit Committee will review the Anti-Fraud
and Anti-Corruption Policy and mechanism periodically to ensure
its effectiveness and enforce the commitment of the Group to the
prevention, deterrence, detection and investigation of all forms of
fraud and corruption.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BB A KRR

China Financial Leasing Group Limited (the “Company”), with its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) is pleased to demonstrate
its commitment to sustainable development. The Group prepared
the Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report (the
“ESG Report”) and aims to disclose the overall policies, practice,
commitments and strategies on the sustainable development of
the Group during the reporting period which covers the period
from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022 (“Reporting Period”).

REPORTING FRAMEWORK

This report is prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting
Guide as set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES
The Group has prepared the ESG Report in accordance to the
following reporting principles stated in the ESG Reporting Guide.

- Materiality: The Group communicates with our major
stakeholder groups on a regular basis to identify and assess
ESG-related issues that matter most from stakeholders’
perspectives. Key ESG issues identified through stakeholder
engagement and materiality assessment.

- Quantitative: Quantitative information/KPI presented in this
ESG Report is accompanied by narrative, explanation and
comparison wherever applicable.

- Balance: The ESG Report aims to disclose data in an
objective way, which aims to provide stakeholders with a
balance overview of the Group’s overall ESG performance.

- Consistency: Unless otherwise stated, the Group adopts
consistent methodologies and retrieves social and
environmental KPlIs from the Group’s internal record system.
The scope of reporting and KPIs are consistent with those
of the previous report to allow meaningful comparison over
time.
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

The Group understands that sustainability is particularly important
to the long-term development of the Group, the society as well as
our next generation. The Group is committed to create a business
that contributes to global efforts in environmental care and will
introduce various environmental protection and social welfare
activities in order to foster the sustainability development of the
society.

BOARD STATEMENT ON ESG GOVERNANCE
The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) is committed
to incorporating the ESG mindset into business operations. The
Board accepts full responsibility for the sustainability of the Group,
including formulating strategies, overseeing the Group’s ESG
related risks and opportunities, and approving the ESG Report.
The Board is also required to keep abreast of and comply with
the latest regulatory requirements before the approval of the ESG
Report.

The Board believes that the management of ESG-related
risks and opportunities is essential to the Group’s efficient and
effective operation. The risk management and internal control
systems assure accuracy, reliability and the timeliness of the data
presented and sustainable development measures. The Board
will also regularly review the implementation effectiveness of the
systems and whether they cover major control measures on
material ESG issues.

REPORTING BOUNDARY

This ESG Report focuses on the environmental and social
performance of the Group’s operation in Hong Kong.
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STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT

The Group endeavours to create sustainable growth and long-
term value for its stakeholders, who comprise the Group’s
employees, investors and the wider community. The Group
continues to interact with its stakeholders on an ongoing basis in
order to understand their views and collect their feedback. The
Group has also established effective communication channels
with its stakeholders through its company website, annual general
meeting and staff meetings. The opinions of stakeholders are
vastly beneficial to formulating and implementing sustainable
development strategies which enables the Group to improve
its ESG performance. If you have any opinions or suggestions,
please do not hesitate to contact us by mail to 11/F., Wui Tat
Centre, 55 Connaught Road West, Hong Kong.

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Group has adopted the principle of materiality in the ESG
reporting by understanding the key ESG issues that are important
to the business of the Group. During the Report Period, the
Company undertook its annual materiality assessment exercise.
The objective of materiality assessment is to identify ESG topics
that are material and relevant to the Group’s operation. This
involved conducting interviews and/or surveys with internal and
external stakeholders to identify the most significant environmental
and social impacts on its business. To identify potential material
topics for disclosure in the ESG Report, we took reference to the
ESG Reporting and set possible topics for assessment. According
to the results of the materiality assessment, the items below
demonstrated the ESG topics with high materiality to the Group,
including:

° Employee welfare

° Inclusion and equal opportunities
o Talent attraction and retention

° Occupational health and safety

° Preventing child and forced labour
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o Supply chain management
o Economic value generated
o Corporate governance

° Anti-corruption

o Community investment

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group is committed to acting in an environmentally
responsible manner through its office management and daily
operation. The Group adheres to the principle of recycling and
reducing, and implement green office practices to minimise the
impact of businesses on the environment.

Below practices are being implemented by the Group for energy
saving measure:

(i)  double-sided printing and copying, promoting using recycled
paper and reducing energy consumption by switching off
idle lightings and electrical appliance;

(i)  maintain the temperature at 25.5C, an optimal temperature
for comfort and energy savings;

(i)  staff is recommended to switch off the lights and air
conditioning in the meeting room when it is not in use;

(iv)  widespread adoption of multi-function photocopiers (with
printing, scanning and fax functions); and

(v)  promote paperless environment by encouraging the use of
soft and electronic copy for the document instead of hard
copy.

Being an investment company, the Group is also aware of the
investment decisions and its potential impact to the environment.
Should the opportunity arise, the Group would consider the
risk of the projects and return dynamics as well as the positive
environmental effects it will have.
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Emission

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group is committed
to protecting natural resources and the global environment.
Our commitment to emission reduction, energy and resources
conservation encompasses every aspect of the Group’s operation,
and the Group has complied with laws and regulation related to
environmental protection. In light of the Group’s business nature,
the operation of the Group does not generate air, water or land
pollutions or raise any significant environmental issues.

Electricity consumed by the Group in principle place of business
is supplied by The Hongkong Electric Company, Limited. The
electricity consumption by the Group was approximately 7,000
kWh. The Group keeps the consumption of electricity at a
minimum level and the Group believes that the Group consumes
energy efficiently.

Since the Group’s business does not involve manufacturing
activities, solid waste is mainly generated in daily office operations
without generation of hazardous waste. The Group encourages
employees to go paperless as much as possible by limiting print
outs as well as communicating via e-mail as opposed to fax.
Employees are also encouraged to reuse paper and conserve
paper usage by printing double-sided to the extent practicable.
During the year, the Group used a total of approximately 470,000
pieces of paper in its normal business operations of which
approximately 450,000 pieces of paper were attributable to the
printing of the financial statements and materials related to general
meetings distributed to shareholders of the Company.

Climate Change

Global warming has been one of the utmost concerned issues in
recent years, which might indue extreme weather conditions such
as storms, flooding and earthquakes, etc.

During the reporting period, the Group has not been seriously
affected by the extreme weather conditions as the Group adopted
various emergency plans to prevent the disruption of the operation
such as working arrangement in black rainstorm warning and/or
typhoon signal 8 situation.
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Even though the Group expected that potential extreme weather
condition, sustained high temperature do not have a material
impact on the Group’s operations, the Group will continue to
monitor the climate-related risks and implement relevant measures
to minimize the potential impact of climate change.

Regulatory Compliance

During the year under review, the Group was not aware of any
incidents of non-compliance with laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the Group relating to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

Use of Resources

The Group has undertaken various resources saving measures
to demonstrate the efforts in efficient use of resources in the daily
operations. Employees are encouraged to optimize resources to
help the Group to minimise the impact on the environment and
natural resources e.g. use of public transportation. Although non-
significant amounts of water is consumed through the business
activities, the Group also encourages water saving by driving
water-saving habits and posting green messages in the workplace
to remind the employees to use water effectively.

The Environmental and Natural Resources

Since the Groups core operations are confined to the office
environment, the impact of the Group on the environment and
natural resources is not significant. It is mainly attributed to the
use of electricity, water and papers in the office. During the
year, the Group set a number of measures to reduce the use of
resources (refers to above sections “Environmental Protection”
and “Emission” for details). In order to have further reductions on
the environmental impact and use of natural resources, the Group
will continue to make assessment and minimise the environmental
impact.
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SOCIAL

Employment

The success of our business has been, and will continue to be,
heavily dependent upon the continuing service of our employees.
The Group provides competitive remuneration, implements a
sound performance appraisal, advocates ethics and human rights

at the workplace.

As of 31 December 2022, the Group has 2 (2021: 2) employees in
offices located in Hong Kong. The Group strictly complies with the
Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57), the Employee’s Compensation
Ordinance (Cap. 282), the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Cap. 485) and the Minimum Wage Ordinance (Cap.
608) in Hong Kong:

The Group prohibits the employment of child, forced or
compulsory labour in any of our operations;

Wages, overtime payments and related benefits are made in
accordance with minimum wage or above (if any);

Holidays and statutory paid leaves are compliant respective
Labour Law or Regulations; and

The Group is also dedicated to implementing equal
opportunity employment practices by maintaining a diverse
workforce that includes age, gender, family status, sexual
orientation, disability, ethnicity and religion, which are in
compliance with the requirements of the legislation on anti-
discrimination in Hong Kong, including Sex Discrimination
Ordinance (Cap. 480), Disability Discrimination Ordinance
(Cap. 487), Family Status Discrimination Ordinance (Cap.
527) and Race Discrimination. Ordinance (Cap. 602).
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, there were no non-
compliance or notification from governmental authorities for
contravention of any of the employment practices referred to

above.

The employee compositions by gender, age, employment type

and geographical region were as follows:

Employee Structure

FEA

BAEKINT -

Number of
employees as at
31 December 2022

HE-_Z-_—_"F#+-_A=+—BL*#F
€ REBWEERIBR - INERD| AT
EREHNARER T EEIED

RIER - Fik - REER MRS DE

Percentage of
employees as at
31 December 2022

S NR-—T——
+t=ZA=+—8H +t=ZA=+—8H

EEFEE WEE A" 9 {& & Lt B
Total number of employees 2 100.0%
EEA™
By gender Male 1 50.0%
=R SM

Female 1 50.0%

7
By age Aged 31-40 2 100.0%
RER 31 £ 405%
By employment type General Staff 1 50.0%
RERER —fRETL

Senior Management 1 50.0%

SREEABR
By geographical region Hong Kong 2 100.0%
RiE B
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The following table sets for the turnover rates of the Group’s
employees for the Reporting Period:

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

TREFNHRE
b %

HEAKEREE 2K

Summary of Employee Data

Number of employees
resigned in 2022

Turnover rates

TR SRR

EEHEME HEE AR A=
By gender Male 1 50.0%
=R S

Female — —

M
By age Aged 41-60 1 50.0%
RER 41 £ 6055
By geographical region Hong Kong 1 50.0%
®RitE HB
Development and Training BRRIE

The Group believes two-way communication is crucial to
employee engagement that drives job satisfaction and high
productivity. The Group has provided a platform for quality
communication between employees and management.
Promotion is executed on a fair and open basis and any form
of discrimination is not tolerated. Competent employees will be
considered for internal promotion in recognition of their efforts and
contribution when there is a job vacancy.

The Group ample resources to staff training and development with
the aim of sustaining a competent and professional staff force
that will contribute to the success of the Group. In 2022, training
sessions were provided to our employees on different aspects
such as technology, internal system, safety and staff induction.

In additions, a number of staff activities were organised to show
appreciation to employees for their contribution and to enhance
their sense of belonging.
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Statistics in respect of development and training for the Report & AN A 2R MM Zat 0T -
Period is set out below:

Summary of Employee Data Units 2022
ETRRME B —g-=

Average training hours per employees by gender
=M RIEI DM EAE 8 /1) T EET IR

Male hours/employee 30
B N EE
Female hours/employee 12
gegid N R B

Average training hours per employees by employee category
tog = =R SRk ANz ORSEVA =N OB B Sb g 1T

General Staff hours/employee 12
—RETL NE BB
Senior Management hours/employee 30
BREBAR ANV

Percentage of employees trained by gender
RIERIEI D H B ZEIEE S A

Male 100%
E=Eks
Female 100%
4

Percentage of employees trained by employee category
ZERERE»HNEZIEIINEES L

General Staff 100%
—MRET

Senior Management 100%
SREBABR
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HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group is subject to the health and safety requirements of
Hong Kong including, but not limited to, the Occupational Health
and Safety Ordinance. The Board believes that it is in compliance
with such requirements for the year ended 31 December 2022.
The Group’s liability to the employees is covered by insurance,
which are required by law to take out. The Board further confirmed
that there was no material violation of currently applicable safety
regulations nor were there any material employee safety issues
involving the Group. During the year ended 31 December 2022,
no fines or penalties for non-compliance of safety laws and
regulations were imposed on the Group.

The Company does not aware of any work-related fatalities
occurred in the past three years including the Reporting Period
and there are zero lost days due to work injury.

Labour Standards

The Group’s employment policies regarding prohibiting child and
forced labour are implemented to ensure the adherence of the
local employment laws and regulations. Before the confirmation
of employment, the Group will require job applicants to provide
valid identity documents to verify that the applicants are lawfully
employable and ensure full compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that prohibit child and forced labour. The Group will
regularly review the employees’ information to ensure there is no
violation of any regulations and policies.

The Group has zero-tolerance in the use of forced labour or
child labour in its business operations. The Group enters into an
employment contract with each of its employees in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations. If the use of forced
labour or child labour is discovered, the Group will terminate the
employment contract and investigate if further action is needed.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the
Employment Ordinance, Employment of Children Regulations
and other applicable laws and regulations relating to preventing
child or forced labour on the Group in the Report Period. No
non-compliance with the law that resulted in significant fines or
sanctions had been reported in the Report Period.
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During the year, the Group had no non-compliance case regarding
violation of relevant child labour and forced labour laws.

Lawful Governance

The Group has complied with the applicable employment related
laws and regulations currently in force in Hong Kong (including
but not limited to those relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity diversity, anti-discrimination, other benefits and
welfare), as well as the Group does not employ staffs who are
below 18 years of age. The Group provides such rights and
benefits to the employees which are no less than those required
statutorily. No employees are paid less than the minimum wage
specified by the Minimum Wage Ordinance (Chapter 608 of the
Laws of Hong Kong). Monthly salary payments are made on time
according to respective employment contracts.

Supply Chain Management and Product Responsibility

The Company is an investment company. During the year ended
31 December 2022, the Group mainly engages in investments in
listed and unlisted equity securities. It does not have any major
supplier of products, raw materials or services.

Anti-corruption

With integrity being a core part of the Group’s business ethics,
the Group strictly complies with the laws and regulations
regarding bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering, such
as the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the
laws of Hong Kong). To maintain high standards of corporate
governance, the Group fulfills the commitment through abiding
by anti-corruption policies and guidelines, such as acceptance
of gifts and conflicts of interest. To live up to the anti-corruption
commitment, whistleblowing policy is also formulated by the
Group. The employees of the Group are encouraged to report any
suspected misconduct and violation of rules. Investigation work
for whistleblowing reports is handled with strict confidentiality
under all circumstances to preserve anonymity.

RAFERN AEBYBEBEEREH
BT kKI5 TARNTEMIMES -

REER
AEBETEBRITZERDERARM
EGIROER (BB AR B 3 B K f#
B BEBLRET  TERE  BRY ¥F
ezl - REER - EfFaRkET
BRZEREIRD)) R IREREMA AN 18
mZBI WHEIRHMNEREER
BB TREMNEEF - BERETNEER
SAERSEERTE G (FEEDE 608
BIZIE BRAFIREZETINE
BAEAIEE AT -

HEEEERERET
BHE-_T-_—_F+-_A=+—HLHF
- BRARRHER—BRERAR - A
CSEEXEBEZAER EMRIFLETRA
BHEZEE WU EEAHAEAEBEIRHE
Ef o BEVMRSRE 2 EEH-ER -

RES
HBESAEEBEERNZLMLD » K
SEERE T LRBED (BRI
FIsE201E) EAMBEH DR MR
MERHER LR - REFEKFOE
XA AREBRBETHNABEXE
BREMNaEEREREBERRIEETTEH U
BUIASENAERBREENDEE
Ao RETASERNREARE - NEETT
EHERBEK - AREEE TER
TRFIRIETREERTR - AER
WK E 2 THEREMIBTR THREBR
BHARE  URGEBALES -

o I < L 4R A R
R TEER



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BB A KRR

Any employee or third party who wish to report a concern
thru our whistleblowing system should inform the Group’s
internal audit team or the audit committee by sending the
Whistleblowing Report Form with supplementary information, if
any, by way of E-mail or mail. For details, please refer to section
“WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY” in the Corporate Governance
Report.

To prevent corruption in the Group, the Group delivers the
anti-corruption policy of the Group to our staff when they are
employed. On-going training are given to our staff and directors
annually in respect of anti-corruption.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had not
been charged for any corruption within the Board, its senior
management and its staff, as well as its subsidiaries and their
employees, during their employment.

The Group, together with the current Board, gives the utmost
priority to regulatory compliance. The Board advocates a high
level of independence so as to make independent judgements.
Therefore, the Company has appointed three independent
non-executive Directors. In selecting the Board members, the
Company already considered the experience, knowledge and
background of all three independent non-executive Directors that
can contribute to the diversity and caliber of the Group.

Community Involvement

The Group always endeavours to serve the community and
therefore highly respects its corporate social responsibilities. For
the sake of social betterment, the Group will identify charitable,
non-profit or educational institutions and foundations that share
its beliefs.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lui Cheuk Hang Henri (“Mr. Lui”), age 49, was appointed
as executive Director of the Company on 9 April 2021. Mr. Lui
obtained his Bachelor of Commerce degree from University of
Toronto in 1995. Mr. Lui is also a charter holder of Chartered
Financial Analyst since 2001. Mr. Lui has over 27 years of
experiences in the securities and financial industry, serving various
roles as financial analyst, responsible officer in brokerage house
and asset management firms. Mr. Lui is a responsible officer of
Socius Asset Management Limited, a company licensed to carry
out Type 4 (advising in securities) and Type 9 (asset management)
regulated activities under Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap.
571) (the “SFO”).
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Lam Wai Tsin (“Mr. Lam”), aged 41, was appointed as
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 23
November 2020. Mr. Lam is a holder of Bachelor of Engineering
in Civil and Environmental Engineering from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in 2003 and Master of Finance from The
University of Hong Kong in 2007. Mr. Lam is currently a licensed
person and a responsible officer to carry out type 4 (advising on
securities) and type 9 (asset management) regulated activities
under the SFO. Mr. Lam has approximately 15 years of relevant
experience in financial industry, including provides brokerage,
asset management and investment advisory service. Mr. Lam is
the type 4 (advising on securities) and type 9 (asset management)
responsible officer of Fortune Hill Asset Management Limited
(“Fortune Hill”) since January 2023 and responsible for the
investment portfolio management. Fortune Hill is a licensed
corporation under the SFO with regulated activities type 4 (advising
on securities) and type 9 (asset management) to provide advising
on securities, asset management and investment advisory service
to the clients.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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Mr. Hui Yat On (“Mr. Hui”), aged 63, was appointed as
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 10 June
2021. Mr. Hui graduated from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong with a bachelor’s degree in business administration in
December 1982. In November 2004, Mr. Hui obtained a master’s
degree in professional accounting from Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. Mr. Hui has become a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since December 1986.
Mr. Hui is a member of the Hong Kong Chiu Chow Chamber of
Commerce. Mr. Hui is currently the independent non-executive
director of ArtGo Holdings Limited (a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 3313) since 8
June 2016 and was the independent non-executive director of
Enterprise Development Holdings Limited (a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1808) from
11 January 2021 to 20 September 2021, respectively. Mr. Hui is
currently a senior executive of a company listed on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange. He has previously served as the executive
director and senior executive of several Hong Kong listed
companies. Mr. Hui has three decades of experiences in the field
of corporate finance and financial services.
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Mr. Chan Pak Lam, Tom (“Mr. Chan”), aged 60, was appointed
as independent non-executive Director on 30 June 2022.
Mr. Chan graduated from The University of Keele in England
with major in Economics and Laws, being admitted as a solicitor
in Hong Kong. With over 20 years of experience at the top
management level of various institutions and listed companies, Mr.
Chan has rich experience in the brokerage and trading of different
financial products including project financing, corporate mergers
and acquisitions, initial public offering, trading of securities,
foreign exchange, precious metals etc. Mr. Chan is currently the
Deputy Chairman of Success Universe Group. He also devotes
himself to the society, being a member of the 10th—12th Political
Consultative Conference of Jilin Province in China, Economic
advisor to Jilin Provincial Government, Chairman of The Institute
of Securities Dealers in Hong Kong between 2019 and 2022 and
one of the founders of China Bay Area Think Tank Co., Ltd.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
G HREE

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) is pleased
to submit their report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of China Financial Leasing Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in short to medium term capital
appreciation by investing in a diversified portfolio of investments
in listed and unlisted securities. Details of the principal activities of
the subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance, including a description
of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and
indication of likely future development in the Group’s business,
can be found in the Management Discussion and Analysis set out
on pages 5 to 23 of this annual report. This discussion forms part
of this Report of the Directors.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2022 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 72.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2022.

DONATIONS
No charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
year.

TOTAL NUMBER OF ISSUED SHARES

Details of the movements in the total number of issued shares
of the Company during the year are set out in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 12 January
2012. The purpose of which is to enable the Company to grant
options to eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their
contribution to the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”). Eligible participants of the share option scheme include,
but not limited to, any persons being employees, officers, agents,
consultants or representatives of the Group.

On 25 May 2018, the share option limit was refreshed by the
shareholders of the Company at the annual general meeting that
maximum of 133,964,988 options convertible to 133,964,988
shares at HK$0.02 each can be issued. The share option scheme
is valid and effective for ten years after the date on which the
Scheme is adopted, after which period no further options may be
issued but the provisions of the share option scheme shall remain
in force to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of
any options granted or exercised prior thereto or otherwise as
may be required in accordance with the provisions of the share
option scheme. On 12 January 2022, the share option scheme
has been expired. No Share options were granted, exercised,
lapsed or cancelled during the period.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 154 of this
annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles
of association of the Company (the “Articles”) or the laws of the
Cayman lIslands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company
was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 December 2022.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law (2007 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands, approximately HK$336,824,000 in the share premium
account and approximately HK$19,444,000 in the reserve
arising from capital reduction of the Company completed on
10 December 2012, is distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be
in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the
ordinary course of business. The share premium account may
also be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

At the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on
15 March 2022, approval was given by the shareholders of the
Company to proceed with the capital reduction, share premium
reduction, and the sub-division. For details of the capital
reduction, share premium reduction, and the subdivision, please
refer to the section headed “CAPITAL STRUCTURE” of the
Management Discussion and Analysis.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Lui Cheuk Hang Henri
Mr. Chiu Wai Lap’

Independent non-Executive Directors
Mr. Lam Wai Tsin

Mr. Hui Yat On

Mr. Chan Pak Lam, Tom?

Mr. Luk Chi Shing?®

1. Mr. Chiu Wai Lap resigned on 7 January 2022.
2. Mr. Chan Pak Lam, Tom was appointed on 30 June 2022.
3. Mr. Luk Chi Shing resigned on 30 June 2022.

Pursuant to article 88(1) of the Articles, Mr. Lui Cheuk Hang Henri
and Mr. Lam Wai Tsin will retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer
himself for re-election at the 2023 Annual General Meeting (“2023
AGM”").
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Pursuant to Article 87(3) of the Articles, Mr. Chan Pak Lam, Tom
will be subject to re-election and, being eligible, offers himself for
re-election at the 2023 AGM.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors of the Company, an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considered that all of the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the 2023 AGM has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN
RELATION TO THE GROUP’S BUSINESS

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company’s
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company
and the Director’s connected party had a material interest,
whether directly and indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors or chief
executives of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares (as defined in the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) and debentures of the Company
or any associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2022, according to the information publicly
disclosed, persons who had interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO, are set
out below:
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Mr. Lam Shu Chung (“Mr. Lam”) Beneficial owner Long 46,203,360 26.64%
MRS (THREED EnEAA e~}

Ms. Choi Hing Lin Lori Interest of spouse Long 46,203,360 26.64%

(“Ms. Choi”) (Note 1)
gEEat (82t D(ME) [

Note:

1. Ms. Choi is the spouse of Mr. Lam. Accordingly, Ms. Choi is deemed or
taken to be interested in all the shares in which Mr. Lam is interested in for
the purpose of the SFO.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company has paid/payable HK$400,000 as
investment management fee to Avia Asset Management Limited
(“Avia Asset”), the investment manager of the Company for the
provision of investment management services to the Company.
Mr. Chiu Wai Lap, the executive Director of the Company
during the year and resigned on 7 January 2022 is the director
and responsible officer on Avia Asset. The above transaction
constitutes a de minimis continuing connected transaction which
is exempted from reporting, annual review, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Rule
14A.76 (1) of the Listing Rules.

During the year, Kingston Securities Limited, Supreme China
Securities Limited, Interactive Brokers Hong Kong Limited and
Bright Smart Securities International (H.K.) Limited, the custodians
(collectively the “Custodians”) of the Company provided custody
services in relation to the securities and cash which the Company
may from time to time deposit with the Custodians. The fees
payable by the Company to the Custodians for the services
constitutes de minimis continuing connected transaction which
is exempted from reporting, annual review, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Rule
14A.76 (1) of the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entered into or existed during the year.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as required under the Listing
Rules during the year and up to the date of this annual report.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in accordance with the
requirements of the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report of reviewing and
providing supervision over the Group’s financial reporting process
and internal controls.

As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Hui Yat
On (as the chairman), Mr. Lam Wai Tsin and Mr. Chan Pak Lam,
Tom.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022 have been audited by RSM Hong Kong.

RSM Hong Kong will retire and, being eligible, offers itself for
re-appointment. A resolution will be submitted to the 2023 AGM
for the re-appointment of RSM Hong Kong as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
Lui Cheuk Hang Henri

Executive Director

Hong Kong, 24 February 2023

BREEg
ARABRCEEATURCEE LR
SZRERVELEES  UEHRE
SRR B 2 B R R R PO -

RAFHREH BERREEH =2/
FMITEFHENX - DRIRFF—RELE (F
REFE) ~ MERSEE MR EL -

ENZBECEHNARBBE_T_—
FHT_A=1T—BILFEZEERESE
MR

ZERD
HE S -+ _A=+—HILFE
ZEABMEHRRERAEREDSMER
FIE8iZ -

BAXGHAMEBAGERE XLBHEER
BREMT —HRERANR_-_FT_=F
BRAFASRZ  EUNEHRTES
ES R ESVITIVERN/NCIEPS Gl

REREFS
TEEHEEREERLE
HITEF

BElE

& —ZE-=F-"H—-+mMH

o I < L 4R A R
R TEER



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

W 37 A% 9 R

RSM

RSM Hong Kong BREFEEMEEnR
29th Floor, Lee Garden Two, 28 Yun Ping Road HEMELERFE )\
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong NEZH - +hF18

T+8522598 5123
F+85225987230

www.rsmhk.com

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Financial Leasing Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 72 to 153, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. We have determined that there are no key audit
matters to be communicated in our report.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other
Information comprises all the information in the annual report
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information and,
in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other
Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RREMR

B REEB ST ASHMNEE
B R ([FBEER ) EITEG -
REZEFER BANEERARSEZ
B EA S MBRRARENEE
PE—TE- RIFFEESHE G R
mEEEFEERTA (T8 - R’
By %58 ARMERETAE
TTHMEMERSE - RAEE - B
FRESHNE REBERRNEE AR
PI B R IR ER -

FREISEE
FAREFAFEAESREBERMNERHE
RAHBMBA ARGV BERRER
EENEE - ZFFHEEHMAFNE
BERAWBREILRHATRKETR
2o MmAMIEUZEFTRREHEBD
BER - BMEEERARSALEAE
BEVBARERT IR ©

H & #
EEAUHEMANEE Kt EH R
BAFBNAAERN BT RERSH
BRERRMEWORBEDRE -

B FEAMBREAFENERLTE
HREMER AT SH L ERRTH

AR X RE i

REMBFAGAYHHRERMT - TN
BEERMEREMER  WRILBES - Z
BEAMEFRE D BERE I HRR SR
REBEATFABHNBERAEERES %
UFEERERRA - ERHFIC BT
T HERMARSLEEBENAEX
sHaR R - HPIEMEEEEE - Bt
BPBAFELRS

o I < L 4R A R
R TEER



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

W 37 A% 9 R

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405
of the Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

W 37 A% 9 R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
M 7 A% il e

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

W 37 A% 9 R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matter. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Wong Tak Man, Stephen.

RSM Hong Kong
Certified Public Accountants

24 February 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A 1H a S S 4 T KRR AR

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
hg=d FExT FHET
Revenue PN 8 155 95
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBR R Z WS 26(a) 1 —
Net loss on financial assets at fair FRBEREATFEFEZ
value through profit or loss MG EEREFRE (16,044) (45,583)
(15,888) (45,488)
Impairment loss on other receivables £ b & U 7% T8 s (B /&5 18 — (1,028)
Administrative expenses TERASE (4,593) (4,831)
Loss from operations KEEE (20,481) (51,347)
Finance costs B A AR 9 (21) (250)
Loss before tax FRBLATE B (20,502) (51,597)
Income tax expense FrisfiF &z 10 - —
Loss for the year attributable AKATEEANELEEEE
to owners of the Company 11 (20,502) (51,597)
Other comprehensive income FEHMEEKE
for the year, net of tax HIBRFLIE - —
Total comprehensive income KABEEABEEE
for the year attributable to TEHKRAE
owners of the Company (20,502) (51,597)
(Re-represented)
(EEFHFIR)
Loss per share BREE 15

Basic (HK cents per share)

Diluted (HK cents per share)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A5 B 2 5K D Ak

At 31 December 2022
RZZEZZF+=ZA=+—H

2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B e FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - KB REE 16 - 17
Right-of-use asset EHAEEE 17 - 85
Refundable rental deposit REHEERS 20 60 62
60 164
Current assets REEE
Financial assets at fair value BERBFRILZAFEFE Y
through profit or loss MBEE 19 45,913 25,764
Deposits and prepayments e RN HIE 20 25 2
Bank and cash balances RITRIRG AR 22,933 21,125
68,871 46,891
Current liabilities RBEE
Accruals st EH 433 437
Lease liabilities HMEEE 21 268 96
701 533
Net current assets RBEEFE 68,170 46,358
Total assets less current HWEERRBAE
liabilities 68,230 46,522
Non-current liabilities EREBERE
Lease liabilities HEBE 21 93 —
NET ASSETS BEEFE 68,137 46,522

o I < L 4R A R
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
#r A B 5 R D&

At 31 December 2022
RZZEZZF+=ZA=+—H

2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—F
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
hg=d FHET FET
Capital and reserves EAREEABLELRR
attributable to owners of the &
Company
Share capital &N 22 6,938 46,253
Reserves i 24 61,199 269
TOTAL EQUITY R 68,137 46,522
(Re-represented)
(EH5IE)
Net asset value per share BREEFRE
(Hong Kong cents per share) (BREL) 25 39.28 80.46

Approved by the Board of Directors on 24 February 2023 andare R _Z_=F_A_+HBEKESZSH#

signed on its behalf by: HEERAEUNTESRRES
Lui Cheuk Hang Henri Hui Yat On

BElE =

Executive Director Independent Non-executive Director
HITEE BUHNTEF

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE_T-_F+-A=1+—HILFE

Capital
Share Share reduction Accumulated
capital premium reserve losses  Total equity
RA RHEE EXHAERZE 2itER HER
(note 22) (note 24() (note 24(ii)
(Bsxo2)  (Mfstoa4() (P aE24()
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT TET FHET FAL T
At 1 January 2021 R-Z--F—HF—H 38,553 289,390 19,444 (266,910) 80,477
Issue of shares on placements (note 22(a))  ERERF TR (e 22() 7,700 10,395 - - 18,095
Share issuance expenses BROBTRY - (453) - - (453)
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FR2 AU AL - - - (61,597) (51,597)
Changes of equity for the year ERERE 7,700 9,942 - (51,597) (33,955)
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 R-Z-—F+-A=+—HR
—“E--%#—-f-H 46,253 299,332 19,444 (318,507) 46,522
Capital reduction (note 22(c)) BARENE (M3E22(0) (43,940) - - 43,940 -
Issue of shares on Right Issue (note 22(e)) ~ #RREE1TM{n (HEE220) 4625 39,315 - - 43,940
Share issuance expenses BROBTRY - (1,829) - — (1,823)
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FR2 AU A AT - - - (20,502) (20,502)
Changes of equity for the year ENERED (39,315) 37,492 - 23,438 21,615
At 31 December 2022 RZE--F+-A=1—H 6,938 336,824 19,444 (295,069) 68,137
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R TEER



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

22 N\ 2 =B
BB EmER
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_ZEZ-_—_F+_A=+—RHIFE

2022 2021
—E-CF —E %
Note HK$’000 HK$ 000
B & FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHEERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax BRI A& S (20,502) (51,597)
Adjustments for: FRATEBELH AR
Depreciation of property, plant and mE - BMELZEIITE
equipment 16 9 3
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEECIE 17 261 254
Finance costs BEMKA 9 21 250
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries, net HEWNBRR W FE 26(a) (1) —
Net loss on financial assets at fair value ~ BBEZEATEAEZ
through profit or loss BB EEBRRE 16,044 45,583
Impairment loss on arising from: B 513 2 REESE :
— Property, plant and equipment — W% BEREE 16 29 —
— Right-of-use assets —(EREEE 17 353 -
— Other receivables — Hi WA - 1,028
Operating loss before working capital EEESEPLLEER
changes (3,786) (4,479
Purchases of financial assets at fair BEFRBRRATESE
value through profit or loss MBEE (93,746) (19,290)
Proceeds from disposals of financial HEBREBREAFENEZ
assets at fair value through profit or M EEZEHNIE
loss 57,553 22,457
Refundable rental deposit ROHEEES 2 -
Deposits and prepayments &e REAMEYGRIE (25) 8,000
Cash in margin account of brokerage sAaREeRFPES
firms 1,045 (1,045)
Accruals st E R (1) (1,902)
Margin payable [ REE & - (2,666)
Cash used in operations REMARE (38,958) 1,075
Interest on margin payable FEfHRES ZF 8 - (160)
Interest on lease liabilities HEBERS (21) (20)
Net cash (used in)/generated from mETER (FTA) /FBHESF8
operating activities (38,979) 895
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

A 2> EL
BB EmER
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_ZEZ-_—_F+_A=+—RHIFE

2022 2021
—E-CF —E2—F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt s FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHREARE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and BEME BEIEE
equipment 16 (21) (17)
Net cash used in investing activities KEEBMARE TR (21) (17)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHEERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares on MER TGN TS F08
placements - 18,095
Proceeds from issue of shares on IR BT 2 FT S KA
Right Issue 43,940 —
Share issue expenses paid BEfRRNETHE (1,823) (453)
Borrowing raised E5EE - 1,710
Principal elements of lease payments MENFEASEHD (264) (270)
Net cash generated from financing BMEEHMEREFHE
activities 41,853 19,082
NET CHANGESINCASHAND CASH BReRBEEEEEAEE
EQUIVALENTS B 2,853 19,960
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSAT R—A—HZBRERELEE
1 JANUARY EHH 20,080 120
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSAT Rt—-—B=+—-HzH&EkHE$
31 DECEMBER Z£EHEE 22,933 20,080
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH BeRBRESEEEE
EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances R1T IR & 5k 22,933 20,080
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B 05 R B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Financial Leasing Group Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law
(2007 Revision) of the Cayman Islands. The address of its
registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.
The address of its principal place of business is 11/F., Wui
Tat Centre, 55 Connaught Road West, Hong Kong. The
Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) are principally engaged in short to medium term
capital appreciation by investing in a diversified portfolio of
investments on a general perspective. The principal activities
of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”).
HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKAS”); and Interpretations. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange and with the disclosure requirements of
the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A B B 25 i Ak BT RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the first
time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2022 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 16
(March 2021)

Annual Improvements Project

Property, Plant and
Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use

Onerous Contracts —
Cost of Fulfiling a
Contract

Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

Covid-19 Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 2021

Annual Improvements to
HKFRS Standards
2018-2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A B B 25 i Ak BT RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective
The Group has not applied any new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective
for the financial year beginning 1 January 2022. These
new and revised HKFRSs include the following which
may be relevant to the Group.

3. MM REETEEY

BHEER (&)

(b)

EEMERKRERNHTRE
BT EBMBREER
REBAREERADEMBERK
RZZEZZF—HA—BRKZ
FBFEE R EFE] &
BEI BB BFMEER - 2%
eI RSB E] B AV B WmE %
Al B35 DA T 7] B8 B2 7N 5 [ AR
2 AER]] o

Effective

for accounting
periods beginning
on or after

R BB Z &
BENETHBER

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current

FreetEAF 15 (BRIA) —BES B AR LIRS

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

1 January 2024

—E-mF—H—H

1 January 2024

BEAGHERE (BaIA) — WHEENIERDEE —T-MFE—-—H—H

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 — Disclosure of 1 January 2023
Accounting Policies

ERGTERE R (BRI R) REBUBHREELEHKEER —ET-=%—H—H

F25 — SRR 2R

Amendments to HKAS 8 — Definition of Accounting Estimates

1 January 2023

EE T ERE 8 (BATA) — GFHAFTHESR I =

Amendments to HKAS 12 — Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities 1 January 2023
Arising from a Single Transaction

FHGERIFE 1258 (BATA) —BE—RHELN —E_=%—H—H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A B B 25 i Ak BT RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

3. BRANHTE] RAEIEFT B R
BHEER (&)

(b) T MBI R AR AR R A
EIERMBREER (&)

Effective
for accounting
periods beginning

on or after
Amendments to HKFRS 16 — Lease Liability in a Sales and Leaseback 1 January 2024
BN BHmELENFE 165 (Bl A) — ERERMNEEAE —E_MF—H—H

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or Contribution of Assets To be determined by

between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

EBH BRERAE 0RREEGILD
F08% (E2T4) — WAERER Bk
AECEIENEELERTE

the HKICPA
BESEHMAGEE

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) Presentation of Financial Statements 1 January 2024
— Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains

a Repayment on Demand Clause
EREREESR (ZEZF) MB®mKI®R —

ERAHNE SRR EREEGRRD
EHEFND R

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments and new
standards is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption
of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

—E-mMF—HF—H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i B B R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, unless mentioned
otherwise in the accounting policies below (e.g. certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair value).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are

disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(@) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries
are entities over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. The Group has power over
an entity when the Group has existing rights that give
it the current ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e.
activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting
rights held by other parties. A potential voting right is
considered only if the holder has the practical ability to

exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B 05 R B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Consolidation (Continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the
sale plus the fair value of any investment retained in
that subsidiary and (i) the Company’s share of the net
assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill
and any accumulated foreign currency translation
reserve relating to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised
profits are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment loss, unless the investment is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).

Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company'’s functional and presentation currency.

(a)

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B % ok P RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(ii)

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency on initial recognition
using the exchange rates prevailing on the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rates at the end of each reporting
period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in foreign currencies are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates when the fair
values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B 05 R B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. ERSFHBEE (&)

(Continued)
(b) Foreign currency translation (Continued) (b) EBE (&)
(i) Translation on consolidation (i) #HERERE

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company’s presentation currency are
translated into the Company’s presentation
currency as follows:

o Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated
at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

° Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates for the period
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the exchange rates on the
transaction dates); and

° All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the foreign currency
translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of monetary items that form
part of the net investment in foreign entities are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the foreign currency translation
reserve. When a foreign operation is sold,
such exchange differences are reclassified to
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or
loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B % ok P RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. ERSFHBEE (&)

(Continued)

(c)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for administrative
purposes are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost, less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on
a straight-line basis. The principal annual rate is 25%.

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B 05 R B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. Control
is conveyed where the customer has both the right
to direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

The Group as a lessee

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of
a low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments to be
made under reasonably certain extension options are
also included in the measurement of the lease liability.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured
at amortised cost and interest expense is calculated
using the effective interest method.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or rate are not included in the measurement
of the lease liability and hence are charged to profit
or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B 05 R B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use asset also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of their estimated
useful lives and the lease terms.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included
in the cost of right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B 05 R B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for
a lease that is not originally provided for in the lease
contract (“lease maodification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments and
lease term using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification. The only exceptions are any
rent concessions which arose as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic and which satisfied the
conditions set out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16. In
such cases, the Group took advantage of the practical
expedient set out in paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16 and
recognised the change in consideration as if it were
not a lease modification.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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(e)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B % ok P RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. ERSFHBEE (&)

(Continued)

(e) Recognition and derecognition of financial (e) BARBUERAMBIA (H)
instruments (Continued)
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when Eﬁéiéfﬁﬂﬁiﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁz/a\%
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset BN ER  HEEY ﬁ‘KﬁF
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and NEEH®REB %Z ENE )
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership ﬁﬁ&@iﬁﬁﬁ%%%—ﬁﬁfﬁﬁ :
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither AEEFEEUERRZIEE
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and 30 1ﬁ$’$lEFT$T§%7TT\1%
rewards of ownership and continues to control the BHARE 2B REn Rk & E
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained W BEEr %M%L‘““ﬁ?
interest in the asset and an associated liability for BRNEEEREREHEEEN
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains REBHER UREAREFE
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of NEEEBERE - WAKE
a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to REE 5’*?{“" ﬁﬁﬁﬁ?%ﬁﬁﬁz
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a 1B R ER D B b K B3R - BIIANER
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received. B A u?dﬁ My BEE - A

TRt B WE 2 AT 1S I TR —
HBHERER -

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and REBZHMBAEBEERAEE
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, L BEERER - BUBSKER R
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the BUBHER - BUBERZHFE
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised EREEEHEE T REMNKE
and the consideration paid and payable, including any (BIEEEEZEMIFREE
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is EXRMAEAEE) 2EZ8RNIE
recognised in profit or loss. T HER ©

() Financial assets n MBEE
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets Fﬁﬁﬂﬂ“’éizz H ﬁﬁﬁé EA
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date I% AR REIETER -
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases BEE hiE ﬁ%,ﬁﬂiﬁﬁﬁ’\ﬁfa m
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of 5 RSB IR E 2 BEPR R AT
assets within the time frame established by regulation NZMBEE - FIECHERM
or convention in the marketplace. All recognised ﬁ“é?ﬁfﬁﬁ?ﬁ“*ﬁ?ﬂ%&iﬁ
financial assets are measured subsequently in AR A EEETE
their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited

Annual Report 2022



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B 05 R B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt investments

Debt investments held by the Group are classified
into the amortised cost measurement category, if the
investment is held for the collection of contractual cash
flows which represent solely payments of principal
and interest. Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest method.

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as
FVTPL unless the equity investment is not held
for trading purposes and on initial recognition of
the investment the Group makes an election to
designate the investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) (non-recycling) such
that subsequent changes in fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income. Such elections are
made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may
only be made if the investment meets the definition
of equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where such
an election is made, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income remains in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is disposed
of. At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
accumulated losses. It is not recycled through profit or
loss. Dividends from an investment in equity securities,
irrespective of whether classified as at FVTPL or
FVTOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as revenue.

(f)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A B B 25 i Ak BT RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BETZ-—H+-A=+—ALHFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

(h)

(i)

Receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit
losses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash
and cash equivalents are assessed for expected credit
losses (“ECL”).

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument under
HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group
after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and
equity instruments are set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B 05 R B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. ERSFHBEE (&)

(Continued)

() Payables () FEARE
Payables are recognised initially at their fair value ERTRIBYF R A FEER
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using Hg KA BB N EIE RS HK
the effective interest method unless the effect of a2 RIFMBATE Eﬁiﬁ(
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they ERIERT - AR AT AR
are stated at cost.

(k) Equity instruments (k) HEZMITAR
An equity instrument is any contract that evidence B TAREMAIER—IA
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after ERVEELHKRMEBEAER
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments ﬁm?—% i BEENEL - K
issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds NRETzEEMTAZEW
received, net of direct issue costs. FRGRIBIR BB EHITRARS)

() Revenue and other income n WARHEMEA
Revenue is recognised when control over a product or WARE P ESE R E @R

service is transferred to the customer, at the amount
of promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. For financial assets

R %lﬁf?%ﬁﬂ;zﬁ’%l%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
B 2 ANRETRE (T
ERERF=ZTJTEBZE5) EE

R o

M BWAAE R BOARE R5t
MR - LI AR HHBREERMEZ

measured at amortised cost that are not credit- REIHENAGE M BEEM
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the T HEBAEEMNREMAERK
gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit impaired RAERNE - gtHREERE
financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to LUHTBEEMS HEBEE

the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of
loss allowance) of the asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment are established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B % ok P RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Employee benefits

0]

(ii)

(iii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to
the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group operates a mandatory provident
fund scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all qualifying employees in Hong
Kong. The Group’s contributions to the MPF
Scheme are calculated at 5% of the salaries and
wages subject to a monthly maximum amount
of HK$1,500 per employee and vest fully with
employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of the dates when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits, and when
the Group recognises restructuring costs and
involves the payment of termination benefits.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B 05 R B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

(o)

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be
received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match
them with the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in
profit or loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

(n)

(o)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B 05 R B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused
tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B 05 R B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-
of-use assets and the related lease liabilities, the
Group first determines whether the tax deductions
are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 requirements to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences
relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
are not recognised at initial recognition and over the
lease terms due to application of the initial recognition
exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.

(o)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A B B 25 i Ak BT RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BETZ-—H+-A=+—ALHFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are
reviewed at each reporting date for indications of
impairment and where an asset is impaired, it is
written down as an expense through the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income to its estimated recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets. If this is the case, recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
(“CGU”) to which the asset belongs. Recoverable
amount is the higher of value in use and the fair value
less costs of disposal of the individual asset or the
CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated
future cash flows of the asset/CGU. Present values are
computed using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset/
CGU whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for CGU are allocated pro rata
amongst the assets of the CGU. Subsequent increases
in the recoverable amount caused by changes in
estimates are credited to profit or loss to the extent
that they reverse the impairment.

(q) Impairment of financial assets
The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL
on bank and cash balances other receivables. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of
the respective financial instrument.
China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B 05 R B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group recognises lifetime ECL for the financial
instruments when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if
the credit risk on the financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected
to result from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking
information considered includes the future prospects
of the industries in which the Group’s debtors
operate, obtained from economic expert reports,
financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant
think-tanks and other similar organisations, as well
as consideration of various external sources of actual
and forecast economic information that relate to the
Group’s core operations.

(q)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A B B 25 i Ak BT RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(q) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk for a particular financial
instrument;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same debtor; and

an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days

past

due, unless the Group has reasonable and

supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B 05 R B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to
have low credit risk if:

()  the financial instrument has a low risk of default;

(i)  the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term; and

(i) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have
low credit risk when the asset has external credit
rating of “investment grade” in accordance with the
globally understood definition or if an external rating
is not available, the asset has an internal rating of
“performing”. Performing means that the counterparty
has a strong financial position and there is no past due
amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

(q)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B % ok P RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria are
generally not recoverable:

° when there is a breach of financial covenants by
the counterparty; or

° information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

° a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B 05 R B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. ERSFHBEE (&)

(Continued)

(@) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) ( HMBEERE (&)
Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued) HBEEERENYBEEE (&)
e the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or e HFHZERAABEY

contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s F 5 IR B % N 2 A
financial difficulty, having granted to the KERENEHETH
counterparty a concession(s) that the lender(s) FHERA—KITEE
would not otherwise consider; or RHER %

e itis becoming probable that the counterparty will o HFFZRIUJEHEME
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; EIGETHFEMR © 3
or

e The disappearance of an active market for that e BHAMBEEZERM
financial asset because of financial difficulties. 5B SR EE T K ©

Write-off policy B

The Group writes off a financial asset when there MBENBEREBALREE

is information indicating that the debtor is in severe B 7 IR 2 B 30 A E R U Bl AT B

financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of M (BREBARSBRAEE

recovery, including when the debtor has been placed ABERF - B HEHMEK
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy A BEEABEMF
proceedings, or in the case of other receivables, when (WRFBZEEER/AE))  BIX

the amounts are over two years past due, whichever SERBZVBEEMIE - 2

occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be SH IS B ED P H R A S B

subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s HIBIRF 2 s BIT/ES -

recovery procedures, taking into account legal BESKEZER (WEAR) -

advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are EAI U B RIBER R B4 o

recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B 05 R B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information as described above. As
for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is
represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at
the reporting date.

The ECL for financial assets is estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are
due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL
in the previous reporting period, but determines at the
current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime
ECL are no longer met, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at
the current reporting date, except for assets for which
simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account and does not
reduce the carrying amount of the financial asset in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B 05 R B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

(s)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end
of the reporting period are adjusting events and are
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements when material.

r)

(s)

4. EXREFEE (&)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE—

5.

B+ A=tT—HIEFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
are stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. In determining whether an asset is
impaired, the Group has to exercise judgement and make
estimation, particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has
occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset value;
(i) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported
by the recoverable amount, in the case of value in use, the
net present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset; and (jii) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating the
recoverable amounts including cash flow projections and an
appropriate discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset (including
right-of-use assets), the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the CGU to which the assets belong. Changing
the assumptions and estimates, including the discount
rates or the growth rate in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the net present value used in the impairment
test.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets are disclosed in Note 16 and 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B 05 R B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
price risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall
risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance.

6.

(a)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly
through its investment in equity securities. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risk and
return profiles. The Group’s equity price risk is mainly
concentrated on equity securities quoted on the Stock
Exchange.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the end
of the reporting period.

If equity prices had been 10% (2021: 10%) higher/
lower, loss after tax for the year ended 31 December
2022 would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$4,591,000 (2021: HK$2,576,000). This is mainly
due to the changes in fair value of held-for-trading
investments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

BETZ-—H+-A=+—ALHFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not
meet its obligations under a financial instrument or
customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The
Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating
activities and from its financing activities, including
equity instruments and deposits with banks and
financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions
and other financial instruments. The Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents
is limited because the counterparties are banks and
financial institutions with high credit-rating assigned
by international credit-rating agencies, for which the
Group considers to have low credit risk.

All of the Group’s financial assets at amortised cost
are considered to have low credit risk, and the loss
allowance, if any, recognised during the period was
therefore limited to 12-month expected losses.
Financial instruments are considered to be low credit
risk when they have a low risk of default and the issuer
has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term. Financial assets at
amortised cost include deposits.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

6. FXEAERERE (&)

(Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (c) RBELEKE
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current REBRER R T TR
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that LRERBESTE R
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its HREHIASFEERTEER
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. R ZRBESHFE o
The maturity analysis based on contractual BREBEASBEIFTENBEEZ
undiscounted cash flows of the Group’s non-derivative BHARMRRSRE Z DB
financial liabilities is as follows: MAMTT
On demand Between
or less than 1 and
1 year 2 years Total
EEXRSH1ER 1E2%F @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
At 31 December 2022 R-B-—§+=-A=+—H
Lease liabilities MERE 268 93 361
Accruals fEEtEA 433 - 433
701 93 794
At 31 December 2021 RZZEZ—F+ZA=+—H
Lease liabilities ME&E 97 — 97
Accruals FETE A 437 - 437
534 — 534
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

BETZ-—H+-A=+—ALHFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

BREREE (&)

(Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) RBELER (&)
Based on the assessment of the directors, despite the BREZEFEH  BELAKEEZ
continuous operating loss incurred by the Group over FREELEKEERE  A5H
the years, the liquidity risk encountered by the Group is InEBEeRBRER  REZ
minimal considered that the Group will have sufficient RERAEBERENETEER
cash resources to satisfy its future working capital after %@J&ﬁ RENEIRBEREBRIE
taking into account the ability of the Group to conduct NI EFNECHBEE &
fund raising activities and the ability to realise the HEEREREERAERARK
financial assets at FVTPL. LEED °
(d) Categories of financial instruments at d R=-E-_Z—F+=ZA=+—H
31 December 2022 HEm T AE4A5
2022 2021
—=-= B4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Financial assets: MEEE :
Financial assets at FVTPL: FRBEREAFEFE
2B EE
Mandatorily measured at 58 %‘J MFEBERIR
FVTPL NERE 45,913 25,764
Financial assets measured at ¥ # 5K A5 & 2 81 7%
amortised costs BE 22,995 21,189
Financial liabilities: MBEE:
Financial liabilities at BB HK ARG R 2 715
amortised cost aE 433 437
(e) Fair values (e) 2A¥E
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets REEMBEERMBEEED
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated FREER NS E T BARRKA
statement of financial position approximate their R - BEXBAFEESE
respective fair values.
China Financial Leasite-Grou NI TN
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
following disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair
value hierarchy that categorises into three levels the inputs
to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

7.

Level 1 inputs:

Level 2 inputs:

Level 3 inputs:

quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Group can access at
the measurement date.

inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly.

unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date of the
event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. AEEFE (E)
(Continued)
Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 R-ZEBE-_ZF+=-A=+—HHWA2
December 2022: FEEREE
Fair value measurements using: Total
FERATHMABE2LFETE st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2022
E—& B B=HK —B-=F
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TER TER TET
Recurring fair value REMDTETE:
measurements:
Financial assets MEEE
Financial assets at FVTPL ~ #BEHERATEFEY
Listed equity securities HBEE FMRAES 45,913 - - 45,913
Fair value measurements using: Total
FATEABL A FERFE : st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2021
F—1 F_& F=@H —T-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FEL FET
Recurring fair value REMDTETE:
measurements:
Financial assets MREE
Financial assets at FVTPL @ BIERIE AT ENE 2
Listed equity securities M EELMRAES 25,764 — — 25,764
China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE—

8.

T —_F+-A=1+—HLEFE

REVENUE 8. WA

Revenue recognised during the year is as follows: FABBZBALRT
2022 2021
—=E-= —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Interest income on bank deposits ~ fR1T1F 2 F B U A 5 —
Dividend income AR 2 A 150 95
155 95

The results arising from the fair value change of financial
assets at FVTPL are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
under the line of “Net loss on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss”. The gross proceeds from trading of
securities for the year are approximately HK$57,553,000
(2021: HK$22,457,000).

The Group has identified its operating segments and
prepared segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the Group’s executive
director for his decisions about resources allocation to
the Group’s business components and review of these
components’ performance.

For both years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
the Group has identified only one segment and the sole
business of this segment is investment in listed securities.
No separate analysis of segment information by business
segment is presented.

The Group’s revenue from external customers and its non-
current assets by geographical areas are not presented as
the geographical segments other than Hong Kong are less
than 10% of the aggregate amount of all segments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BMEMA
2022 2021
—Eg-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Interest on borrowing BEZHE - 70
Interest expense on lease liabilites FEEE 2 F 25 21 20
Interest on margin payable ERHRE S 2B - 160
21 250
10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FRIEHAX
The Group is not subject to any taxation under the FR - AEEBEZNHAEREER
jurisdictions of the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin REBEXHSAAERAMN TR
Islands during the year (2021: Nil). H(ZEZ—F:#|)o
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in B N & B F (N 30 4 FE SR A i A
the consolidated financial statements since the Group has ZEZ—F &) WMUESFER
no assessable profit for the year (2021: Nil). BT AR A TSR NI i -
China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 10. FRB®iIFAX (&)
The reconciliation between the income tax expense and FriStim x BRI AT B 1B R A B H
the product of loss before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong PGB E 2 RBEHERAT -

Profits Tax rate is as follows:

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHT
Loss before tax bR A E IR (20,502) (51,597)
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax & E TSI E 16.5%
rate of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) AEZHE
ZEFZ—F :16.5%) (3,382) (8,514)
Tax effect of income that is not BARMPA Z I E
taxable (29) (15)
Tax effect of expenses that are PAIB A 2 BIR &
not deductible 1,108 2,333
Tax effect of other temporary HEMRERERFEER L
differences not recognised mETE (3) @)
Tax effect of tax losses not ANERMIEBE 2 HIE
recognised ge 2,306 6,199
Income tax expense FriEHiA — —
At the end of the reporting period the Group has unused RMERR - K& .ﬂi@ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
tax losses of approximately HK$363,390,000 (2021: 18 #7363,390,000 7T (=& —
HK$349,413,000) available for offset against future F 1 349,413,0007% 7r) * A K 5 K
profits and are subject to the approval of Inland Revenue Hom A R BEME BRI E - I &
Department. No deferred tax asset has been recognised EFEFL IR & B B R 2R s F i 9 S Al
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax FERE M ERER - BB A ER
losses may be carried forward indefinitely. HA4EeE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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11. LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO 11. AQAREE AELFEEE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY B
The Group’s loss for the year attributable to owners of the KAREBEANEBLEASEFTEERE
Company is stated after charging the following: RIBRATEIEEZZ -

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
Auditor’s remuneration ZE A 355 335
Depreciation of property, plantand  #1% « BE M REZITE
equipment 9 3
Depreciation of right-of-use assets fFREEE ZITE 261 254
Net foreign exchange loss b 5 B8 F 58 8 —
Impairment on arising from: B N5 RE
— Property, plant and equipment  — ¥1% - BE MR 29 —
— Right-of-use asset — FERAEEE 353 —
— Other receivables — H b EYFRIE - 1,028
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR 2 1 —
12. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 12. EETBAIFEX
2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHExT FET
Salaries, bonuses and allowances ¥ * 1EAL &oEBL 806 1,227
Retirement benefit scheme RIREFET SR
contributions 32 46
838 1,273
For the year ended 31 December 2022, COVID-19 related BE-_T-_—_#F#+-_A=+—8HLt

FE - FRABRRSHBETHE
49480008 T (—ZE-—F &) B
BHEFAREESRAFAS -

government grants amounted to HK$48,000 (2021: Nil)
have been offset in the employee benefits expense.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

12. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
(Continued)

(a)

Pensions — defined contribution plans

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement plans which are available for eligible
employees in the Hong Kong.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485
of the laws of Hong Kong) for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the laws of Hong Kong). The
MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
Scheme, the employer and the employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of
the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
the Group had no forfeited contributions under the
MPF Scheme and which may be used by the Group
to reduce the existing level of contributions. There
were also no forfeited contributions available at 31
December 2022 and 2021 under the MPF Scheme
which may be used by the Group to reduce the
contribution payable in future years.

(a)

12. BERFBX (&)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

12. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

(Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during
the year included 2 (2021: 3) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in
note 13. The emoluments of the remaining 3 (2021: 2)

individuals are set out below:

12. BERFBX (&)

b) EBEEREHFAL
AEBFRNRERSTMAL
BE2H5(ZTE=_—F :34)
B HFM<MAEN T3
2zt B T3H (ZF
Z—F:28) Az eH
P

2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Basic salaries and allowances EAN#H 4 &L 806 839
Retirement benefit scheme IROREFIET B R
contributions 32 26
838 865
The emoluments fell within the following bands: MEaNFATEE :

Number of individuals

AE
2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 7 7T 3 2

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to any of the highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office (2021: Nil).

The emoluments paid or payable to the remaining 2
(2021: 3) members of senior management fell within

the following band:

TR AREE LR ETED
FMALZBE - fERBMA
X LEPPNER BT
B (CF—F ) -
NTRANTFHT2% (=2
——F:3%) BREREMK
B2 W& N T oA THE

Number of individuals

A
2022 2021
== TR = —4%E
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 7% 7T 2 3

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

13. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 13. EEREA R ERE
DIRECTORS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (@) EEM<
The remuneration of every director is set out below: BRESHMEINWT -

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of
a person’s services as a director, whether
of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
REARAARENBARNES L ALRBEAAELAE

Employer’s
contribution to
Discretionary a retirement
Fees bonus benefit scheme Total
EXHEAER
e BT SHERGR by
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i TR ThEr A
For the year ended BHE-E-CF
31 December 2022 TZA=Zt+-HLEE
Executive Director HTES
Mr. Chiu Wai Lap (Note (i) RELEE (W) 13 - - 13
Mr. Lui Cheuk Hang Henri (Note (i) mEERE () 590 - - 590
603 - - 603
Independent Non-executive BUFHTES
Directors
Mr. Lam Wai Tsin (Note (vii) R A (B3 (vi) 120 - - 120
Mr. Luk Chi Shing (Note (i) B (3 () 60 - - 60
Mr. Hui Yat On (Note (x) FREAE (HEK) 120 - - 120
Mr. Chan Pak Lam (Note (xi) FRifEEE (X)) 60 - - 60
360 - - 360
963 - - 963

R L O 55 7 A
SRR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i B B R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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13. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (Continued)

(@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

13. EERA R E= ()
(a) EEBS ()

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of
aperson’s services as a director, whether
of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

MERRRAZENBARES AT RBEHAELME

Employer's
contribution to
Discretionary a retirement
Fees bonus  benefit scheme Total
ikia B AR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T THET
For the year ended HE-B--F
31 December 2021 +ZA=+-HLFE
Executive Director HTES
Mr. Chiu Wai Lap (Note (i) BE A () 696 - - 696
Mr. Lui Cheuk Hang Henri (Note (i) B2 B %4 (M3 (i) 349 - - 349
1,045 - - 1,045
Non-executive Directors FUTES
Mr. Liu Hai Long (Note (i) 2 (Bt i) - - - -
Mr. Liu Yang (Note (iv) 2554 (W) - - - -
Mr. Xiao Shen (Note (v) HREE (FEy) - - - -
Independent Non-executive BYFHITES
Directors
Mr. Wang Ruiyang (Note (vi) TGk (V) 97 - - 97
Mr. Zhang Bin (Note (vii) oM A (R i) 5 - - 5
Mr. Lam Wai Tsin (Note (vi) MR A (B3 (vii)) 120 - - 120
Mr, Luk Chi Shing (Note (i) BEER R (3T (x) 120 - - 120
Mr. Hui Yat On (Note (x) F2rs (M) 67 - - 67
409 - - 409
1,454 — - 1,454
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B % ok P RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

13. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 13. EE/AER ()

DIRECTORS (Continued)

(@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
Notes:

(i) Resigned on 7 January 2022
(ii) Appointed on 9 April 2021
(iii) Resigned on 30 November 2021

(iv) Resigned on 27 May 2021

(v) Resigned on 20 September 2021
(vi) Resigned on 31 August 2021

(vi)  Resigned on 15 January 2021
(vii)  Appointed on 23 November 2020

(ix) Resigned on 30 June 2022
(x) Appointed on 10 June 2021
(xi) Appointed on 30 June 2022

(b) Directors’ material interests in transactions,

arrangements and contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company was a party and in which a director
of the Company and the director’s connected party
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

14. DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend any payment of dividends
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

(@) E=M<E (&)
BEE

() KT =—F—A+AET

(i) RZZBEZ—FMANBEZAF

iy R-ZE-_—F+—A=1+8H#&
(e

vy RZEZ—FRAZ-+LAHE
T

v R-ZE_—FhA-tHEE

Vi RZE-_—FNA=Z+—H#

T
Wiy M-ZT-—F—A+ABEBE
Vi) RZE_ZF+—-—A=+=H
BZT

(ix) RZZBZZFA=THERT

(x) RZE-—FA+HEZE

(xi) R_E-_—FA=1THEZ
£

(b) EERARAEEXEZEX
R5 RFERENZEREHS
RAREII L ABAEEE
% BARREZENEZZH
BANETERRHEERAEE

AAEes - WHNEF R F I
BRETFEZEARS  THR
BHY o
14 Hﬁ/u\
BV AERERNEE T —_—

+-A=t+— B2 EARE
—T——f @)

=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

5. LOSS PER SHARE 15. BREE

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to owners
of the Company is based on the loss for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately HK$20,502,000
(2021: HK$51,597,000) and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of 79,955,313 (2021 (re-represented):
55,731,667) in issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share

As the Company did not have any dilutive potential ordinary
shares for the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 and
the potential ordinary shares of the Company’s share options
would be anti-dilutive for the year ended 31 December 2022
and 2021, diluted loss per share was the same as the basic
loss per share for the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B % ok P RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. ¥ - BEKRRE
Furniture
and office
equipment
R R
WAERE
HK$'000
FET
Cost KA
At 1 January 2021 R-ZE-—F—H—H 22
Additions INE 17
At 31 December 2021 R_E-_—F+_A=1+—HBX
and 1 January 2022 —F-F—H—H 39
Additions NG 21
At 31 December 2022 N—E——F+-HA=+—8H 60
Accumulated depreciation FEItE
At 1 January 2021 R—ZE=-_—%—H—H 19
Charge for the year FANEBH 3
At 31 December 2021 RZB-_—F+-_A=+—8xk
and 1 January 2022 —E-__4—AF—H 22
Charge for the year FANEA 9
Impairment losses WEEE 29
At 31 December 2022 R-E-—F+_-_A=+—H —
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2022 RZEBE-_—_F+-_A=+—H —
At 31 December 2021 RZEBE-_—F+-_A=+—H 17

R L O 55 7 A
SRR
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. EFHEEE

Leased
properties
HEWXE
HK$’000
FETT
At 1 January 2021 RZEZ—F—H—H 339
Depreciation e (254)

At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+A=+—HK
and 1 January 2022 —F-_F—H—H 85
Additions NE 529
Depreciation e (261)
Impairment losses BIEEE (353)
At 31 December 2022 N2 —_F+=-A=+—H —

Details of total cash outflow for leases are set out in note
26(c).

For both years, the Group leases an office for its operations.
Lease contract is entered into for fixed terms of 2 years
(2021: 2 years), but may have termination options. Lease
term is negotiated on an individual basis and contained a
wide range of different terms and conditions. In determining
the lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a
contract and determines the period for which the contract
was enforceable.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
Annual Report 2022

FAHEENEE s RE ZFBIER
B 5+ 26(c) °

RMEFE AXEBHEHERQAEE
KERE HEANE2F (=
T —F:25F) WEEHRIL
WREERR L - HEHRIZ AR
B BEREAR GRS
A E TH B PR Ko ¥ 44 1 A H0sH B
B2 FHE  AERERAANZE
- UTEETHSOARHATHH
BR o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B 05 R B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. RIBARIZIRE
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2022 are R-FE - —F+—-A=+—H 2K
as follows: BRARIFRELT :

Place of incorporation/

registration and Particular of issued Percentage of ownership/ Principal
Name operation share capital voting power/profit sharing activities
ARRILY/
BRREERY/
£ EEERER BRIRAHE BER/RER/ENAEEAL IEXH
Direct Indirect
E# 3
2022 2021 2022 2021
“E--f -Z--% CZB-ZE -—Z--%
Income Sky Limited Hong Kong/ 1 ordinary share 100% - - - Inactive
Limited liability
company
BRERAT Bk/EREE 1RERR LEZK
R
China Finance Qianhai  British Virgin Islands/ 1 ordinary share - 100% - - Investment
Limited Limited liability of US$1 holding
company
TESBNEERAT HBRLNE/F  \REE1IER REBR
REFAR (EIM)
LERER
China Finance Qianhai Hong Kong/ 1 ordinary share - - - 100% Inactive
(Hong Kong) Limited Limited liability
company
TESRAE (BB) B8/ARER 1REER hiE s
ARRA A
ZHEERERE People’ sRepublic ~ Registered capital - - - 100% Inactive
ERAF of China (the “PRC")  of Renminbi
(wholly foreign (‘RMB’)
owned entity) 15,000,000
hEAREANE AMERRARY LEXH
([wE]) /258 (TAR%])
¥ 15,000,007

ANEIXRBRIEZERERE
B BENABEZMBEARFS -

The above list contains the particulars of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the
Group.
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HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 10. ZEREREAFETEZ

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Equity securities listed BRAGFTE BB RE
in Hong Kong and United States, MR AFE S
at cost 73,144 47,347
Net fair value loss RNEEEBEF (27,231) (21,583)
Fair value as at 31 December R+t-—A=+—B82
~NE 45,913 25,764

Financial assets at FVTPL are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.

The carrying amounts of the above financial assets are
mandatorily measured at FVTPL in accordance with HKFRS
9.

The investments included above represent investments in
equity securities that offer the Group the opportunity for
return through dividend income and fair value gains. They
have no fixed maturity or coupon rate.

The fair values of listed securities and derivative financial
assets are based on quoted market prices.

The realised losses and unrealised losses on financial
assets at FVTPL for the year ended 31 December 2022 are
approximately HK$10,396,000 (2021: HK$33,334,000) and
HK$5,648,000 (2021: HK$12,249,000) respectively, the
aggregate of which was recorded as net loss on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 19. EBBEREAFEFERZ
(Continued) Eﬁ%ﬁ% (&
Particulars of the Company’s financial assets at FVTPL as at KRR T ZF+A=1+—
31 December 2022 are as follows: H Z}ﬁiﬂ% i AN EFE 2%

BEFBWOT

Net assets

Proportion attributable

Place of incorporation/  Numberof  of investee’s Market value/ Fair value tothe

Name of investee company registration sharesheld ~capital owned Cost fairvalue  (losses)/gains Company
fERRRE AFE RAREE

FREAREHR HRAY/BRnY  FERGHEE  AFEALA A% wE/ATE (FE) /b BERE

HK$ 000 HK§'000 HK$ 000 HK§'000
TEL TER TEL TEL

() China Carbon Neutral Development Group Limited (“China Carbon”) Caymen lslands 4,700,000 147% 14,972 11,656 (3316) 1,865
HEREAEREEERAA ((RERAA)) REES

(o) Smart City Development Holdings Limited (“Smart City") Cayman Islands 9,952,000 4.15% 8,001 7,663 (338) 5249
BHERERERAF (184%)) REEE

(c)  Siver Tide Holdings Limited (" Siiver Tide™) (Cayman Islands 5000000  Lessthan 1% 5410 4,700 (710) 999
REERERAR (BE]) REES SR 1%

() Hong Kong Education (International) Investments Limited Bermuda 2400000  Lessthan 1% 3,991 4212 281 587
("Hong Kong Education”)
BAYE (BR) REEEARAA (B84E)) BRE SR 1%

() Hing Ming Holdings Limited ("Hing Ming") Cayman Islands 16,328,000 4.34% 18,099 4,000 (14,099 54713
REERAERAR () AERE

() Mii Intermational Holdings Limited (“Mij") Cayman Islands 33,820,000 2.25% 5619 3,382 (2231) 2,801
AREBRERARRA (DREEAR]) REHE

(@  Link-Asia International Medtech Group Limited (“Link-Asia) Cayman Islands 56,000,000 4.55% 5,565 3,025 (2540) 18,268
ROBREENREEERAR ([RE)) AERE

(h) Tracker Fund of Hong Kong (“Tracker Fund”) Hong Kong 100000 Less than 1% 2,279 1,992 (287) 1,811
BEES (BEER)) gk PR1%

() AAGroup Limited (“AIA") Hong Kong 19,000  Lessthan 1% 1,512 1,649 137 519
RARBERER LA ([RARR]) B SR1%

o I < L 4R A R
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL

19. EBRBER R AVEFEZ

- S ;_I‘-:
(Continued) B%EE (&)
Net assets
Proportion attributable
Place of incorporation/  Numberof  of investee’s Market value/ Fair value tothe
Name of investee company registration sharesheld capital owned Cost fairvalue  (losses)/gains Company
fERRRE AFE RAREE
FREAREHR HRAY/BRnY  FERGEE  AFEALA A% wE/ATE (FE) /b BERE
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn T Thn Thn
() Tencent Holdings Limited (“Tencent”) Caymen lslands 4000 Lessthan 1% 1672 1,33 (336) 361
BAZRARAT (1)) REES SR 1%
(K Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limtied (“TSMC”) Taiwen 1,200 Lessthan 1% 748 6% (62) 0
B Sl = SR 1%
() Applelnc(“Apple”) California, US 500 Lessthan 1% 564 506 (58) 12
Apole Inc ([ Apple) eI D%
(m CLP Holdings Limited (“CLP") Hong Kong 7000 Lessthan1% 523 39 (124) 297
HEZHERRA ([HE]) & SR1%
(n)  China Shenhua Energy Company Limited (“Shenhua Energy”) PRC 15000  Lessthan1% 337 338 1 1938
HERELRROERAA (MR Gilet SRA%
() CNOOC Ltd (“CNOOC") Hong Kong 30000 Lessthan1% 301 299 2 433
hEETRAERAR (4EEERA) gk SR1%
69,593 45913 (23,680)
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19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL
(Continued)
A brief description of the business and financial information
of the investee companies, based on their published
annual and interim reports, results announcements and
management accounts, is as follows:

(@)

China Carbon is principally engaged in (i) trading
of carbon-credit assets, carbon credit and carbon
asset development, management and investment in
carbon neutral related fields and carbon consulting
and carbon planning; and (ii) civil engineering
works and building construction and maintenance
works. The audited consolidated profit attributable
to owners of China Carbon for the year ended 31
December 2021 was approximately HK$267,651,000
(2020: HK$302,029,000). As at 31 December
2021, the audited consolidated net asset (2020:
liability) value attributable to owners of China
Carbon was approximately HK$86,874,000 (2020:
HK$678,929,000). The unaudited consolidated profit
attributable to owners of China Carbon for the six
months ended 30 June 2022 was approximately
HK$3,916,000 (2021: HK$407,964,000). As at 30
June 2022, the unaudited consolidated net asset
(2021: liability) value attributable to owners of China
Carbon was approximately HK$127,197,000 (2021:
HK$39,042,000).

19. ZPBER XA FEHEZ
MBaE (#)
RIEBBFFRANTE AN EFE
RAEBREREERERBEL LY
RS BERBMAMT

(@)

PR EERE )RS
EREE - kP MEBES
MikERAMIREERE . &
BRI E A R R A N AR AR
g RMEARIEEBNUE
BFRERREEBR - RE
EE-_—F+ZHA=1T—
AIEFE  vEBRPNES
ANEBHEEZEE RN B
#7267,651,0008 T (—= & =
T 4 1 302,029,000/ 7T) ° B
—E—F+ZA=+—H"
PRERFMNES ABLHEE
BIREEE(ZE-Z2F: 8
&) JF{E# A86,874,00078 7T
(ZZ - Z 1 : 678,929,000
L) REBE_T-_—_F XA
=+ HIENEAR - AEGKFF
BB ABHREEZEE B
#9/43,916,00087T (=T =—
4 1 407,964,000/ 7T) ° B —
E-_FXA=1+8 " AR
R A A RERZEE
BE(ZE-_—F:8/H) %
B #) &127,197,00078 7T ( —
T~ —4F : 39,042,000/ 7T) °
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19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL
(Continued)

(b)

Smart City is principally engaged in (i) construction
business, as a main contractor and fitting out works,
as well as the provision of electrical and mechanica
engineering services, mainly in Hong Kong and
Macau, and other construction related businesses; (ii)
investment in securities; (i) property investment; and
(iv) money lending business. The audited consolidated
profit attributable to owners of Smart City for the
year ended 31 March 2022 was approximately
HK$15,336,000 (2021: HK$9,860,000). As at 31
March 2022, the audited consolidated net asset value
attributable to owners of Smart City was approximately
HK$130,371,000 (2021: HK$116,875,000). The
unaudited consolidated loss (2021: profit) attributable
to owners of Smart City for the six months ended 30
September 2022 was approximately HK$3,785,000
(2021: HK$6,674,000). As at 30 September
2022, the unaudited consolidated net asset value
attributable to owners of Smart City was approximately
HK$126,586,000 (2021: HK$123,549,000).
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19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 10. ZEREREAFETEZ

(Continued)

(©

Silver Tide is principally engaged in (i) providing
construction services, including traditional formwork
using timber and plywood, system formwork using
aluminium and steel, and ancillary works such as
concrete works and reinforcement works for the public
and private sectors in Hong Kong; and (i) securities
dealing and broking. The audited consolidated loss
(2021: profit) attributable to owners of Silver Tide for
the year ended 31 March 2022 was approximately
HK$33,844,000 (2021: HK$14,127,000). As at 31
March 2022, the audited consolidated net asset value
attributable to owners of Silver Tide was approximately
HK$211,142,000 (2021: HK$244,986,000). The
unaudited consolidated loss attributable to owners of
Silver Tide for the six months ended 30 September
2022 was approximately HK$11,411,000 (2021:
HK$23,594,000). As at 30 September 2022, the
unaudited consolidated net asset value attributable
to owners of Silver Tide was approximately
HK$199,731,000 (2021: HK$221,392,000).

Hong Kong Education is principally engaged
in the provision of private educational services,
investment in securities, money lending business
and trading of virtual reality (“VR”) and gaming
products and provision of related services. The
audited consolidated loss attributable to owners of
China Mobile for the year ended 30 June 2022 was
approximately HK$32,892,000 (2021: HK$3,617,000).
As at 30 June 2022, the audited consolidated
net asset value attributable to owners of China
Mobile was approximately HK$145,801,000 (2021:
HK$167,596,000).
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EEB(ZE=Z—F: &% H)
#) /33,844,000 7t ( = &
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R-_ZE-_—_#F#=A=+—8"
REEBAELKEEZES
B EFEY AE211,142,00078
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19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 10. ZEREREAFETEZ

(Continued) MKEE (&)
) Hing Ming is principally engaged in (i) trading, e HEEFERZ(MMEEME

installation and renting of suspended working
platforms and other construction equipment; and (ii)
construction consulting and project management. The
audited consolidated loss (2021: profit) attributable
to owners of Hing Ming for the year ended 31 March
2022 was approximately HK$3,035,000 (2021:
HK$4,579,000). As at 31 March 2022, the audited
consolidated net asset value attributable to owners
of Hing Ming was approximately HK$121,354,000
(2021: HK$124,389,000). The unaudited consolidated
profit attributable to owners of Hing Ming for the six
months ended 30 September 2022 was approximately
HK$5,865,000 (2021: HK$2,150,000). As at 30
September 2022, the unaudited consolidated
net asset value attributable to owners of Hing
Ming was approximately HK$126,028,000 (2021:
HK$126,539,000).
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19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL
(Continued)

(®

Miji is principally engaged in the development,
manufacturing and selling of kitchen appliances in
the PRC. The audited consolidated loss attributable
to owners of Miji for the year ended 31 December
2021 was approximately RMB44,353,000 (2020:
RMB21,128,000). As at 31 December 2021, the
audited consolidated net asset value attributable to
owners of Miji was approximately RMB124,268,000
(2020: RMB168,749,000). The unaudited consolidated
loss attributable to owners of Miji for the six
months ended 30 June 2022 was approximately
RMB18,207,000 (2021: RMB16,789,000). As at 30
June 2022, the unaudited consolidated net asset
value attributable to owners of Miji was approximately
RMB106,040,000 (2021: RMB151,904,000).

19. EBRBER R AVEFEZ

MBEE (&)
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TF ¢ AR¥21,128,0007T) °
R—E-——F+=-_RA=+—
B RS BEBRHEE ABMLL
BERREEEFENAAR
¥ 124,268,000 (Z T - &
F: AR ¥168,749,0007T) °
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19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL
(Continued)

(@)

Link-Asia is principally engaged in (i) provision of real
estate advisory service and real estate purchase
service; (ii) electronic manufacturing services for
telecommunications, security, car electronics, home
appliances, other consumer and industrial electronic
products; (iii) trading of personal care products,
telecommunication products, business telephone
system, sale of audio equipment; (iv) Manufacturing
services of home appliances, other consumer and
industrial electronic products; and (v) provision
of consultancy service and pre-pregnancy care
and assisted reproductive services. The audited
consolidated loss attributable to owners of Link-Aisa for
the year ended 31 December 2021 was approximately
HK$46,397,000 (2020: HK$173,052,000). As
at 31 December 2021, the audited consolidated
net asset value attributable to owners of Link-
Asia was approximately HK$365,877,000 (2020:
HK$295,462,000). The unaudited consolidated
loss attributable to owners of Link-Asia for the six
months ended 30 June 2022 was approximately
HK$13,539,000 (2021: HK$32,042,000). As at 30
June 2022, the unaudited consolidated net asset value
attributable to owners of Link-Asia was approximately
HK$401,140,000 (2021: HK$320,507,000).

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
Annual Report 2022

19. EBRBER R AVEFEZ

MBEE ()

@)

RO FTERFB(REFHER
AR R EHERE RS ¢ (i)
B L2 "RBEETF KA
FER - HEMBEERIXEFE
mME T RIERTS 5 (i) EA
BEm EMEm BEER
RRE S HEZHERWE (V)
RE - HMBEERIXESTFE
MO ERS: RVRHEZ
AIRE R BB EERTE - B2
T —F+ZA=+—H1t
FE RIEHEEABRLLERZ
4R A B 1B %) 546,397,000
T (ZZEZFF : 173,052,000
BIX)c R-_TE - —F+ =
A=+—8B RIEHEARE
HREREEEEFENA
365,877,000 L (ZE = F
4 1 205,462,000/8 7T) ° N E
BT FRNA=FTHIEAR
A - REHEE ARGERESE
Z4R A BB %) 513,539,000 7%
7T (== = — £ : 32,042,000
BIL)e RZEZZ_F A
=+tH REBEAAEMGER
KERZEREEEFHENAR
401,140,000 7t (= & = —
4 1 320,507,000 7T) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B 05 R B RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 10. ZEREREAFETEZ

(Continued)

()

The Tracker Fund’s objective is to provide
investment results that closely correspond to the
performance of the Hang Seng Index. The audited
loss attributable to owners of Tracker Fund for the
year ended 31 December 2021 was approximately
HK$13,525,529,000 (2020: HK$985,563,000).
As at 31 December 2021, the audited net asset
value attributable to owners of Tracker Fund
was approximately HK$100,071,497,000 (2020:
HK$105,557,155,000). The unaudited loss attributable
to owners of Tracker Fund for the six months ended

MBEE ()
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SHEBES HE_T——

F+-ZA=+—HBLEFE"

REEcHBARLEEEZ
B B QN 7%13 525,529,000 78
7T (ZZEZZ 4 : 985,563,000
B IT) ° EA_iﬁ__E—'——
A=Z+—B &BE&c#S
ANELEREZEEFEOAR
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30 June 2022 was approximately HK$3,296,076,000 — £ % :105,557,155,000
(2021: HK$6,682,114,000). As at 30 June 2022, the BIL) e BEZT ZZF K
unaudited net asset value attributable to owners of A=1tBIEX~NEA B &

Tracker Fund was approximately HK$114,242,567,000
(2021: HK$93,602,500,000).
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19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL
(Continued)

M

AlA is principally engaged in the writing of life insurance
business, providing life insurance, accident and health
insurance, and savings plans throughout Asia, and
distributing related investment and other financial
services products to its customers. The audited
consolidated profit attributable to owners of AlA for
the year ended 31 December 2021 was approximately
US$7,427,000,000 (2020: US$5,779,000,000). As
at 31 December 2021, the audited consolidated
net asset value attributable to owners of AlA
was approximately US$60,467,000,000 (2021:
US$63,200,000,000). The unaudited consolidated
loss (2021: profit) attributable to owners of AlA for the
six months ended 30 June 2022 was approximately
US$571,000,000 (2021: US$3,245,000,000). As at
30 June 2022, the unaudited consolidated net asset
value attributable to owners of AIA was approximately
US$41,000,000,000(2021: US58,944,000,000).
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19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 10. ZEREREAFETEZ

(Continued)

0

Tencent is principally engaged in the provision of value-
added services, online advertising services and fintech,
and business services. The audited consolidated
profit attributable to owners of Tencent for the year
ended 31 December 2021 was approximately
RMB224,822,000,000 (2020: RMB159,847,000,000).
As at 31 December 2021, the audited consolidated
net asset value attributable to owners of Tencent
was approximately RMB806,299,000,000 (2020:
RMB703,984,000,000). The unaudited consolidated
loss attributable to owners of Tencent for the six
months ended 30 June 2022 was approximately
RMB42,032,000,000 (2021: RMB90,354,000,000).
As at 30 June 2022, the unaudited consolidated
net asset value attributable to owners of Tencent
was approximately RMB736,494,000,000 (2021:
RMB846,207,000,000).
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19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL
(Continued)

(k)

TSMC is mainly engaged in the manufacturing, sales,
packaging, testing and computer-aided design of
integrated circuits and other semiconductor devices
and the manufacturing of masks. The audited
consolidated profit attributable to owners of TSMC for
the year ended 31 December 2021 was approximately
NT$596,540,013,000 (2020: NT$517,885,387,000).
As at 31 December 2021, the audited consolidated
net asset value attributable to owners of TSMC
was approximately NT$2,168,286,553,000 (2020:
NT$1,849,657,256,000). The unaudited consolidated
profit attributable to owners of TSMC for the six
months ended 30 June 2022 was approximately
NT$439,760,000,000 (2021: NT$274,049,000,000).
As at 30 June 2022, the unaudited consolidated
net asset value attributable to owners of TSMC
was approximately NT$2,496,353,000,000(2021:
NT$1,991,786,000,000).

Apple is principally engaged in the provision of designs,
manufactures and markets smartphones, personal
computers, tablets, wearables and accessories,
and sells a variety of related services. The audited
consolidated profit attributable to owners of Apple for
the year ended 24 September 2022 was approximately
US$99,803,000,000 (2021: US$94,680,000,000).
As at 24 September 2022, the audited consolidated
net asset value attributable to owners of Apple
was approximately US$50,672,000,000 (2021:
US$63,090,000,000).
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19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 10. ZEREREAFETEZ

(Continued)

(m)

CLP is principally engaged in (i) generation and
supply of electricity in Hong Kong, Mainland China,
Australia and India; and (i) investment holding of
power projects in Mainland China, Southeast Asia and
Taiwan. The audited consolidated profit attributable
to owners of CLP for the year ended 31 December
2021 was approximately HK$8,491,000,000
(2020: HK$11,456,000,000). As at 31 December
2021, the audited consolidated net asset value
attributable to owners of CLP was approximately
HK$113,034,000,000 (2020: HK$112,200,000,000).
The unaudited consolidated loss (2021: profit)
attributable to owners of CLP for the six months ended
30 June 2022 was approximately HK$4,855,000,000
(2021: HK$4,615,000,000). As at 30 June 2022,
the unaudited consolidated net asset value
attributable to owners of CLP was approximately
HK$107,148,000,000 (2021: HK$112,036,000,000).
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19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL
(Continued)

()

Shenhua Energy is principally engaged in (i) the
production and sale of coal; and (i) the generation and
sale of coal-based power to provincial/regional electric
grid companies in the PRC. The audited consolidated
profit attributable to owners of Shenhua Energy for the
year ended 31 December 2021 was approximately
RMB51,607,000,000 (2020: RMB35,849,000,000). As
at 31 December 2021, the audited consolidated net
asset value attributable to owners of Shenhua Energy
was approximately RMB380,038,000,000 (2020:
RMB364,203,000,000). The unaudited consolidated
profit attributable to owners of Shenhua Energy for the
six months ended 30 June 2022 was approximately
RMB42,475,000,000 (2021: RMB26,500,000,000).
As at 30 June 2022, the unaudited consolidated net
asset value attributable to owners of Shenhua Energy
was approximately RMB372,512,000,000 (2021:
RMB354,821,000,000).
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19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL
(Continued)

()

CNOOQOC is principally engaged in the exploration,
development, production and sale of crude oil and
natural gas. The audited consolidated profit attributable
to owners of CNOQOC for the year ended 31 December
2021 was approximately RMB70,320,000,000
(2020: RMB24,956,000,000). As at 31 December
2021, the audited consolidated net asset value
attributable to owners of CNOOC was approximately
RMB480,912,000,000 (2020: RMB433,708,000,000).
The unaudited consolidated profit attributable to
owners of CNOOC for the six months ended 30
June 2022 was approximately RMB71,887,000,000
(2021: RMB33,329,000,000). As at 30 June
2022, the unaudited consolidated net asset value
attributable to owners of CNOOC was approximately
RMB548,691,000,000 (2021: RMB456,809,000,000).
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20. DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 20. B RFEFFIE
2022 2021
—Eg-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Deposits oA 62 64
Prepayments e I8 23 —
85 64
Analysed as: DA
Non-current assets EMBEE 60 62
Current assets MENEE 25 2
85 64
21. LEASE LIABILITIES 21. HEEE
Present value of
Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments
EEEENE EEAENENRE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—EC-CE —ZE--— —E-CE —Eg-—
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
Within one year —ER 282 97 268 %
In the second to fifth years, inclusive ~ £ -FFRF
(BHEEEMT) 94 - 93 -
376 97 361 96
Less: Future finance charges B RRHEE (15) (1) N/A RiEH N/A g
Present value of lease obligations HEAERRE 361 9% 361 96

Less: Amount due for settlement B Rt -EAR

within 12 months HEER 2 S
(shown under current liabilities) GIARBAE) (268) (96)
Amount due for settlement after TZEARIHBER
12 months Z5IR 93 =
China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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21. LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied
to lease liability is 6.94% (2021: 9.87%).

21. HEAE (&)
HEaBERANMETYIESEE
FEB6.94%(— T =—F : 9.87%) °
FrEfREa BB THE -

All lease liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

22. SHARE CAPITAL 22, g7
Number of
ordinary shares Par value
EEREE HfE
Note HK$'000
Pzt THT
Authorised: ETE -
At 1 January 2021 RZT-—5—-H—H
Ordinary shares of BREE0.02ET
HK$0.02 each LEk 15,000,000,000 300,000
Share consolidation R in& o (o) (13,500,000,000) N/A 1@ R
At 31 December 2021 N_EZ—F+ZHA=1—H
and 1 January 2022 kZZE-__%—f—H
Ordinary shares of BREME2ET
HK$0.2 each LER 1,500,000,000 300,000
Capital reduction BARHIA (©) 28,500,000,000 N/A T i@ A
Share consolidation Bin& ot (d) (22,500,000,000) N/A TR
At 31 December 2022 R-E-—_F+-RA=+—H
Crediting shares of BREE.4ET
HK$0.04 each ZET AR 7,500,000,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRARE
At 1 January 2021 RZTZ—%F—
Ordinary shares of BREBE0.02ETT
HK$0.02 each TRk 1,927,649,882 38,553
Issue of shares on placements R ER TR (a) 385,000,000 7,700
Share consolidation Bin &bt (o) (2,081,384,894) -
At 31 December 2021 RZZE-_—5+-A=1+—A
and 1 January 2022 kZE-—F—F—H 231,264,988 46,253
Capital reduction BREIR ©) - (43,940)
Share consolidation k& Of (d) (173,448,741) -
Issue of share on Right Issue IR BRI ) 115,632,494 4,625
At 31 December 2022 RZE__#+_A=1—H
Ordinary shares of BREMBM4ETT
HK$0.04 each 2 TRk 173,448,741 6,938
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22. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 22. IR (#&)

Note: MsE -

(@  On 23 April 2021, the Company entered into a placing agreement @ RZEZ—FMNA=-+=H KQF
with Orient as placing agent where Orient agreed to place on a best HEREN (EARENRE) i1 —
effort basis a maximum of 385,000,000 new shares of the Company BEREEHE Bt RAEVRESR
of HK$0.02 each at HK$0.047 per Placing Share to at least six LA S R B & AR 19 0.047 A T it & &
placees who were professional investors according to the definition % 385,000,000 % & % ™ 160.02/%8 7T
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance. The intended and actual ZARRBFRGD T LRANBEEA
use of proceeds from the share placement was for general working (REXEREE (ERRBFRHER
capital and investments. B) e ROBEMSREBEZRERE

BRe2A—REELASRIEE -
The placing transaction was completed on 14 May 2021 and EERXFER S _—FHATMN
a total of 385,000,000 shares were issued. The gross and net H X k& B2 % 17385,000,000 %
proceeds were approximately HK$18,095,000 and HK$17,643,000 B&in - IS RIBRBERFEIANOA
respectively. The net price was approximately HK$0.046 per Placing 18,095,0007% 7T X 17,643,000/ JT °
Share IV. SRS KD INFEL A0.04678 7T -

()  On 24 August 2021, the Company consolidated every ten issued ) RZEZ—F/\AZ+MA  KAQF
and unissued shares of par value of HK$0.02 each in the share AR BRAF T+ REREEO.02
capital of the Company be consolidated into one consolidated share BB BETRRETHNROEHA
of par value of HK$0.2 each. — R EREE.2E LA HHIRD »

() Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the shareholders of the © BEARARRE-_ZT-_=_F=A
Company at an extraordinary general meeting held on 15 March THRARITHRIFA RS L@BMN
2022, the issued share capital of the Company was proposed to FRIARER  BREBFHEHER
be reduced by reducing the par value of each of the issued shares AEGREBITRMHOIB T  BE
of the Company from HK$0.20 to HK$0.01 by cancelling the paid- RARF B EHITIRG 2 EEH0.20%
up capital to the extent of HK$0.19 per issued share (the “Capital JTCHIRZ0.018 7T LLEIRA AR Z
Reduction”). Part of the credit arising from such reduction would be EEITIRA ([BEAREDR]) o ZEIRE
applied towards cancelling the accumulated loss of the Company, T HE BR S AR EUR RN A B RETES
while the balance (if any) would be transferred to the share premium B miE&EH (E) BERERARN
account of the Company which may be utilized by the directors as B BER - P RERIRAR A
a distributable reserve in accordance with the articles of association ERARH AR (TR AR FTE#E
of the Company (the “Articles”) and all applicable laws. Immediately REREUAIED RFEH#H 2R - BEE
following the Capital Reduction becomes effective, each authorized AHIR AR - B IREE B R A R
but unissued share will also be sub-divided into 20 new shares with M D IFE200K% TR EE0.017E
a par value of HK$0.01 each. On 20 July 2022, the Grant Court of LRGN - RZE-_—_F+t A=+
the Cayman Islands granted an order to confirm the capital reduction H HEHREXERCESHERER
of the Company and the Capital Reduction became effective on AIMERER MEAHBRRZ2Z
25 July 2022. Details of which were disclosed in the circular of the “ZFELAZTRBEN - EBFE
Company dated 21 February 2022. BEAARGAA T -_—_F_A

—t+—HZBHA -

(d)  On 21 September 2022, the Company consolidated every four ) RZZEZZFNAAZ+—H ' KAH
issued and unissued shares of par value of HK$0.01 each in the BARABRAFEERD BEITRAKRE
share capital of the Company be consolidated into one consolidated TEREECOI B TR A AE—
share of par value of HK$0.04 each. f& G IR E{E 0.04 B ITLHAR & R D ©

() On 28 July 2022, the Company entered into an underwriting © RZBEZ_F+A-+NH ' KRF

agreement with Lego Securities Limited in respect of the Right
issue up to 115,632,494 Right shares at HK$0.38 each to certain
qualifying shareholders. The intended and actual use of proceeds
from the Right Issue certain was for general working capital and
investments.

The transaction was completed on 27 October 2022. The Rights
Shares are fully subscribed by the shareholders and the obligations
under the Underwriting Agreement has been fully discharged.
A total of 115,632,494 shares were issued. The gross and net
proceeds were approximately HK$43,940,000 and HK$42,118,000
respectively. The net price was approximately HK$0.364 per Right
Share.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

22. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 22. |7 (#&)

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

()  To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it continues to provide returns and
benefits for stakeholders;

(i)  To support the Group’s stability and growth; and

(i)  To provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the
Group’s risk management capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future
capital requirements of the Group and capital efficiency,
prevailing and projected profitability, projected operating
cash flows, projected capital expenditures and projected
strategic investment opportunities.

The Group also balances its overall capital structure
periodically. The Group manages the capital structure and
makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares. The Group will also consider the raise of long-term
borrowings as second resource of capital when investment
opportunities arise and the return of such investments will
justify the cost of debts from the borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

22. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 22, |7 (4&)
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to- AEBEZEBER ttTgﬁ—%?ﬁﬁ
equity ratio. This ratio is calculated as total debt divided by oAb RABEBRARR #Ee=

shareholders’ equity. Total debt comprises borrowings and
lease liabilities. Total equity comprises all components of
equity. The Group aims to maintain the debt-to-equity ratio
at a reasonable level. The debt-to-equity ratio as the end of
the reporting period was as follow:

mat& - Z@L\?ﬁ“’?%{ﬁ‘%&fﬂfﬁ
%E o BT B IR AR RO PR A BB
c REBMBENABEHERL
+,\E%E/—\i$7}<ﬂ? NEEHR
AR RINT

2022 2021

—E-- —ET—F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Lease liabilities HEAE 361 96

Total debt BER 361 96

Total equity R 68,137 46,521

Debt-to-equity ratio BERERLEE 0.5% 0.2%

The increase in the debt-to-equity ratio during 2022 primarily CE I CFEREELRENEE
resulted from recognition of new lease liabilities. mERFHEBEME -

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for
the Group to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange
it has to have a public float of at least 25% of the shares.
The Group received a report from share registrars on

EEMINNMEREXRZE  AEEE
HREABRRT e Emh - A
BEmLVB5BRMHRABRRE - K
SEBEROEBCEEE—HBETIE

substantial share interests showing the non-public float and NAFREZEREERNERZ
it demonstrated continuing compliance with the 25% limit wE - HFRAREEREEFER
throughout the year. —HET25%PREE -

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

23. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

COMPANY

Statement of financial position of the Company

(a)

(a)

R B AR T

23. AR BARR R
25

At 31 December

R+=-—HA=+—H
2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment #1% « BB K& - 17
Right-of-use assets EREEE - —
Refundable rental deposit AROMEERS 60 —
60 17
Current assets REBE E
Financial assets at FVTPL BRBEREAFE
BB ERE 45,913 25,764
Deposits and prepayments & & M IENFIAE 25 —
Bank and cash balances RITRIRE 4 22,933 21,125
68,871 46,889
Current liabilities nEEE
Accruals st EH 433 435
Lease liabilities HEBE 268 —
701 435
Net current assets RBEEFE 68,170 46,454
Total assets less current HBEEEBREBERE
liabilities 68,230 46,471
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Lease liabilities HEBE 93 —
NET ASSETS EEFE 68,137 46,471
Equity attributable to ZF’D\ AEE AR
owners of the company
Share capital szﬁ 22 6,938 46,253
Reserves ] 24 61,199 218
TOTAL EQUITY R 68,137 46,471

Approved by the Board of Directors on 24 February
2023 and is signed on its behalf by:

Lui Cheuk Hang Henri

BElE

Executive Director

HITEE

R-E-_=ZF_A-_tHHEHKES
SHENAATEZTRRES

Hui Yat On

H—R

Independent Non-executive Director
BUHPTEF
o [ <y i LB AR A A

TR AR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

23. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

23. AR E M BARR R
25 (#|)

COMPANY (Continued)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) EATFEERS
Capital
Share reduction Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
EXHE
R EE i ZiEE i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR TER TR
At 1 January 2021 RZZE--%-F—H 289,390 19,444 (266,636) 42,198
Total comprehensive ~ FRZEWNELE
income for the year - - (61,922) (61,922)
Issue of shares on RERRTHRN
placements (note 22(a)  (HizE22(a)) 10,395 - - 10,395
Share issue expenses  FRIAEATRIY (459) - - (459)
At31December 2021 R-F-—F+-A=+-Ak
and 1 January 2022 ~ZE-~F—f—H 299,332 19,444 (318,558) 218
Total comprehensive ~ FRZENEAE
income for the year - - (20,451) (20,451)
Capital reduction EXER - - 43,940 43,940
Issue of shares on HiRE TR Y
Right Issue (note 22(e)  (Miz22(e)) 39,315 - - 39,315
Share issue expenses  FRHETHX (1,829) - - (1823)
At 31 December2022 R-Z-—F+-A=1+—H 336,824 19,444 (295,069) 61,199

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

24. RESERVES

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

Share premium account

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company
are distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business. The
share premium may also be distributed in the form of
fully paid bonus shares.

Capital reduction reserve

Capital reduction reserve represents the credit arising
from the reduction of par value of issued share
capital after cancelling the accumulated losses of the
Company in 2012. The reserve may be utilised by
the directors as a distributable reserve in accordance
with the articles of association of the Company and all
applicable laws.

25. NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE
The calculation of the net asset value per share is based
on the net assets of the Group as at 31 December 2022 is
approximately HK$68,137,000 (2021: HK$46,522,000) and
the number of ordinary shares of 173,448,741 (2021 (re-
represented): 57,816,247) in issue as at that date.

24, #1E

HEZHEERBW

() RG&ER
BREREHEQRE  AQF
BmiaERE S IR T A
RElZRE  EBEEZED
KRB EBUAE - NRRIAER
BENBEETERTEEBY I
BT o BB B INAT LABR
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(i) B E B
BRHIBHERER T ——F
AR R RETERREEH
e FITIRAEEZAR © [
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TR AR K PR A A DI R AE A
T oIk

25. BRREEFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

26. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

26. MEBEFRERMTE

(a) Disposal of subsidiaries (@) HEKEAR
Disposal of China Finance Qianhai Limited, China HERESMIIFERAE -
Finance Qianhai (Hong Kong) Limited, and % #{# B % T (EE) BRA
EREREER A 7 (collectively “Qianhai Group”) ARZHIEZSREREFTRA
A (%7 [ FIa%EE])
On 1 April 2022, the Group disposed of the entire RZE-—_FMA—H A&
issued share capital in China Finance Qianhai Limited HEFHeRAESERA
(“CFQL”) at a cash consideration of HK$1. Al 2mang )22 BTK
- HeRER1ET -
CFQL is indirectly holding 100% equity interest of % TRIAE BB E S MAE
BB ERERE B R R A, through China Finance (B8 ERAFBEEREALR
Qianhai (Hong Kong) Limited. HEesREREERAAZ
100% A% 4 -
Net assets of Qianhai Group at the date of disposal ABEEREERBRZFEE
were as follows: LN
HK$’000
FExT
Deposit and other receivable 2e N E M Y RIE 2
Accrual and other payables FERTE M K& E M FE N IR (3)
Amount due to ultimate JES AR R A B FRIB
holding company (738)
Net liabilities disposed of HEFaE (739)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries  H & EB A Al s 1
Consideration RE (738)
Satisfied by: RTRHFRZA
Waiver of intercompany debts N a HER (738)
Net cash inflow arising HESHHRSRAFE
on disposal =
China Financial Leasing Group Limited

Annual Report 2022



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

26. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONT’D)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising
from financing activities are those for which cash flows
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash
flows from financing activities.

26.

GERSRERME (A)
(b) BEIBFEEZANEE

TERHINEBERDEENAE
BaEEY ERRe MR
Po-mMEIPAELZBEREAS
MELARRSREHNAEE LK
EHERERNERBRERDME
ERERECRIE

1 January New leases 31 December
202 entered Cash flows Non-cash item 202
CECCE ZECCE
-f-H HELE R $Re%ER TZA=t-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
T Tén T T T
Lease liabiltes (note 21) HERR (H21) % 5% (265) - 30
% 529 (265) - 360
1 January Non-cash 31 December
201 Cash flows ftem (note) 201
B 3 “E-f
-A-H Reng (i) +-A=1-A
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000
Tin Tan TEn Tin
Borrowings & 1650 1,710 (3,360 -
Lease iabites note 21 REaE (i) 36 on) - %
2016 1440 3,360) %
Note: BisE

The non-cash item represented the early extinguishment of the
lease.

FRSHEBRRBEORARL -

R L O 55 7 A
SRR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

HE—

26. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONT’D)

27.

B+ A=tT—HIEFE

(c) Total cash outflow for leases

Amounts included in the consolidated statement of
cash flows for leases comprise the following:

26. iR EREXRMETE (&)

(C) *ﬂhiﬁﬁulbtﬂ"@gﬁ

FERTRERANMTAEE
HFIAEBFEIA T &R

2022 2021

—E-F —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Within operating cash flows ~~ #&£&I8& 7 21 20
Within financing cash flows Bl &R &7 264 270
285 290

These amounts relate to the following:

“EERENTHEAH

2022 2021

—E-—F —E - —F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHET

Lease rental paid EfHEE 285 290

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any

significant contingent liabilities (2021: Nil).

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_Z-__F+-A=+T—HILFE

28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

28. BEFRS

Compensation of key management personnel FEEBEAEZHME

The remuneration of directors and other key management FR EFNEMFTEERAEZ
during the year was as follows: T T -

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Short-term benefits EHIE A 1,511 2,127
Post-employment benefits BB 12 42 7 20 18
Termination benefits 1R TG R T 28 —
1,559 2,145

29. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(a) Realised gains and unrealised gains on financial

assets at FVTPL
The realised gains and unrealised gains on financial
assets at FVTPL from changes in fair value on
financial assets at FVTPL held as at 31 December
2022 to the date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements were amounted to approximately
HK$3,218,000 and HK$345,000 respectively.

20, EHEREE

(@)

ERBSRATETEZMEE
EzCBBINERARBEKE
RZFEZZF+=-_H=+—H
EREHREMBHRERENER
B RS BBEsE AT ER
BB EEs R EEEAM
EAXRBBRESEATENTE
ZHBEE BRI E MK
B35 W a9 Bl 49 43,218,000
77T M 345,000 7T °
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

o AE B B

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for last five financial years, as extracted from the
audited financial statements, is set out below. The summary does
not form part of the audited financial statements.

R ERR 2B D °

iR B R E R R 2 A&l T (A B I
FRZAKREMABEENREENA
BEZMEFHN T - RELTEREE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
“g-CF —E--f —T-%TF —T-HNF —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET AT AT TET
RESULTS £
Revenue LN 155 95 113 1 18
Loss before tax BRI AIEE (20,502) (51,597) (19,807) (65,683) (27,128)
Income tax expenses FERRX - - - - -
Loss for the year attributable to K72 1A AJE(S
owners of the Company FEEB (20,502) (51,597 (19,807) (65,683) (27,128)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES X2EREE
Non-current assets ERBEE 60 164 404 17,182 21,371
Current assets MEBEE 68,871 46,891 87,636 69,917 113,983
Current liabilities mEEE 701 533 (7,467) (17,665) (496)
Non-current liabilities = 93 — (96) (220) -
Net assets attrioutable to KRR NEL
owners of the Company BETE 68,137 46,522 80,477 69,214 134,858
China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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version prevails.
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The English and Chinese version of this Report can be downloaded from the Company’s website and can be
obtained from the Hong Kong share registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited. In the event of any difference, the English
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